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Communication Objective 

Purpose of the Report 
The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 2019 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees for the Minister for Education 
and Minister for Industrial Relations – the Honourable Grace Grace MP has been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 49 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019.  

This report will illustrate how the School aligns its services with the Queensland Government’s objectives for the 
community through a focus on:  

• Creating jobs in a strong economy
• Giving all our children a great start
• Keeping Queenslanders healthy
• Keeping communities safe

This report: 

• highlights the achievements of the School
• profiles the history of the School
• outlines progress against the objectives of the School’s Strategic Design 2017-21
• provides an outlook for 2020
• provides a copy of the audited financial statements (as required under Section 62 of the Financial

Accountability Act 2009).

Copyright  

 © (Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School) 2020 

ISSN 1837-8706 (Print) 
ISSN 1837-8714 (Online)  

Public Availability of the Report  

Copies of this Report are available from:   
Mrs Clair Applewaite  
Secretary to the Board of Trustees   
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School   
PO Box 776 
Rockhampton Q 4700   Phone: 07 4930 0900 Fax: 07 4922 4809 

Email:  BusinessManager@rggs.qld.edu.au 

Website: http://www.rggs.qld.edu.au 

Annual Report Website Location: https://www.rggs.qld.edu.au/annual-reports 

Interpreter Service 

The Rockhampton Girls Grammar is committed to providing accessible services to Queenslanders from all culturally 
and linguistically diverse backgrounds.  If you have difficulty in understanding the annual report, you con contact us on 
telephone (07) 49 300 900 and we will arrange an interpreter to effectively communicate the report to you. 

Attribution:  

Content from this annual report should be attributed as: The Board of Trustees of Rockhampton Girls Grammar 
School Annual Report 2019.  



26th February 2020 

The Honourable Grace Grace MP 
Minister for Education and Minister for Industrial Relations, 
PO Box 15033 
CITY EAST QLD 4002 

Dear Minister 

I am pleased to submit for presentation to Parliament the Annual Report 2019 and financial 
statements for Rockhampton Girls Grammar School. 

I certify that this Annual Report complies with: 

 the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019, and

 the detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for Queensland Government
agencies.

John R Johnson  
Board Chairperson  
Board of Trustees  
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

Cnr Denham & Agnes Streets, Rockhampton, Qld 4700 
PO Box 776, Rockhampton, Qld 4700

T. 07 4930 0900  |  F. 07 4922 4809  |  E. reception@rggs.qld.edu.au  |  W. www.rggs.qld.edu.au

ABN 59 896 511 098  |  CRICOS 00508E 

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at page 60 of this annual report.

Yours sincerely 
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From the Chairperson 
John Ross Johnson - Speech Night Address 
Councillor Cherie Rutherford, guest 
speaker, Kelsie Melrose, 
distinguished guests, Acting Principal 
Mr Ryan Cheers, Incoming Principal 
Mrs Deanne Johnston, fellow board 
members, parents, students and 
friends of the school – welcome to 
the 2019 Rockhampton Girls 
Grammar School Speech Night. 

Contributions to the school 

Girls Grammar benefits from the 
support and contributions of many. 
On behalf of the Board I thank: 

 Our leadership team, Acting
Principal Ryan Cheers who in
conjunction with Dr John Fry
are leading our school for the
majority of term 4;

 Our dedicated teaching staff;
 The administration staff, the

welfare and boarding staff and
the grounds people;

 The Race Day Committee
 The Parents and Friends

Association;
 The Old Girls’ Association;
 Special thanks to our previous

Acting Principal, Michelle
Gouge, who ably led the
school for the majority of
2019; and

 Finally, last but not least,
previous Principal, Christine
Hills who led our school to
many outstanding
achievements. Christine did
not just focus on academic
standards. She applied her
energy and enthusiasm
across the full range of school
activities living the school
vision – WOMEN CAN
ACHIEVE ANYTHING.

Philanthropy is an important source 
of revenue for private schools. This 
year I make particular mention of the 
many generous donations toward air 
conditioning of Kollar House. It was 
not without challenge. Due to power 
network limitations it was first 
necessary to change all lighting 
throughout the school to LED. Both 
projects were completed in 2019. 

Welcome 

This evening it is my pleasure to 
welcome our incoming Principal, 
Deanne Johnston. I look forward to 
Deanne taking up the leadership of 
our school in 2020. She brings with 
her a wealth of experience in 
education and senior leadership. The 
Board look forward to working with 
Deanne to build on past 
achievements and embrace future 
prospects. Like all of us, Deanne is 
passionate about all girls’ education. 

Board Elections 

The current Board of Trustees’ term 
expires in May 2020. The Board has 
7 members. Three (3) are elected 
from the role of electors maintained 
by the Board Secretary, Mrs Clair 
Applewaite.  If you are interested in 
putting your name forward for 
election, please look under the 
newsletter heading of the school 
website for information. The 
remaining 4 board positions are 
nominated by the Minister for 
Education. If you are interested in 
putting your name forward for 
Ministerial nomination, relevant 
information is also available on the 
school website. The Board Secretary 
or one of her support staff can 
provide you with more detailed 
information on the processes for 
election or Ministerial nomination.  

While a board role may be 
demanding on your time, I can assure 
you it is very satisfying. You only 
have to be here tonight and see our 
girls to know how satisfying it can be. 
I acknowledge and thank the current 
Board, Noel Livingston, Jenny Luck, 
Hilarie Dunn, Gail Godwin-Smith, 
Anni Bastin-Byrne and Ken Murphy, 
who between them bring a broad 
range of skills to the school. Each 
year they attend various school 
functions and contribute many hours 
of their time for the benefit of the 
school. 

Parents and students 
Thank you, parents and students, for 
choosing Girls Grammar and being 
part of our community. You are our 
greatest ambassadors. 

Our Vision 

Women can achieve anything. 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar is all 
about educating girls. It’s what we do. 
We’ve been doing it for over 125 
years and we’ll continue doing it. An 
all-girls education gives our girls the 
freedom to develop and realise their 
full potential. You need no more 
evidence of this when you meet our 
year 12 graduates and see them here 
tonight. 

To the girls who have completed year 
12 and are attending their last speech 
night as students – 
You have studied hard. The Girls 
Grammar team of professional 
teachers have helped you achieve 
your best academically. You have 
developed leadership skills, sporting 
prowess, public speaking, teamwork 
and involved yourselves in cultural 
pursuits. You leave us with the 
confidence to take your place in the 
community and to pursue your path 
of choice. It is a path that may have 
many twists, turns and forks but a 
path I know you are prepared for.  
You are the reason we continue to be 
an all-girls school.  We wish you 
success in whatever you choose to 
do in the future. 

Strategy Report
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Strategy Report 

2019 Highlights 

100% of Primary students tested above National Minimum Standard 
in all areas of NAPLAN 
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From the Principal 
2019 In Review – Ryan Cheers (Acting Principal) 

It has been a year of accomplishment 
for Rockhampton Girls Grammar 
School, reflected in 2019 
commencing with strong enrolments. 
This can be attributed to the good 
work of the staff, our strong culture of 
working in partnership with families 
and our desire to see every girl thrive 
and succeed. Our year started with 
the announcement that our recent 
Year 12 graduates were in the Top 
5% in Queensland for student gain 
from Year 9 NAPLAN results to 2018 
Year 12 OP results. Every eligible 
graduate was offered a place at 
university. We followed through with 
pleasing NAPLAN results where, 
once again, RGGS demonstrated that 
they are the number one literacy 
school in the region. 

The social, sporting and cultural 
experiences of the school also 
continue to develop and strengthen. 
RGGS continues to offer a broad 
range of co-curricular opportunities 
for girls to develop holistically. 
Highlights included state and national 
representation in Gondwana National 
Children’s choir, netball, touch 
football and oz tag. Girls Grammar 
girls also competed in barrel racing, 
local Eisteddfods, the QISSN and the 
All School’s Touch carnivals. 
Participation in community events 
included Relay for Life, Girls 
Grammar Race Day, Salvation Army 
Red Shield Appeal and the 

participation in the Rhapsody Rotorua 
Music Festival held in New Zealand. 
It is these opportunities which help 
our girls become confident and 
connected. 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar is the 
only girls’ school which is a member 
of the Queensland Minerals and 
Energy Academy. The emphasis on 
STEAM was illustrated in our 
participation in QMEA student 
workshops and seminars hosted by 
The Cathedral College and by 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School. 
Host QMEA led staff workshop days. 

Performing arts staff embarked on a 
5-year school musical plan during
2019, holding the school's first
musical in several years. Seussical
the Musical Jr. was performed in our
very own school hall, with in-kind
contributions from a local singing and
performing arts academy.  The
musical was an overwhelming
success, with plans of performing at
the Pilbeam Theatre, Rockhampton’s
premier performance location, within
five years.

Throughout 2019, the School’s care 
program was further enhanced by the 
formation of a wellbeing team. The 
Wellbeing Team comprised of care 
mentors, the Head of Boarding, 
Learning Enhancement Teacher, 
Transition Officer, school nurse, 
counsellor and the Deputy Principal. 
Additional meetings were held with 
the Wellbeing Management Team to 
determine the best course of case 
management for our girls. 

Stacey McCarthy was appointed as 
the new Head of Boarding in July 
2019, bringing with her a wealth of 
classroom and boarding experience. 
Boarding thrived under her leadership 
and there was an almost 10% 
increase in boarding numbers by the 
end of the year. Stacey built 
relationships and rapport quickly with 
our girls and took several tours out 
west to meet many of our rural 
families. A connection to the school 
community has been pivotal in the 
ongoing success of the boarding 
facility.  

In 2019, Rockhampton Girls 
Grammar School, in partnership with 
the PNGAus Connect partnership, 
exchanged delegations with our sister 
school in Papua New Guinea, St 
Mary’s Asitavi, to work on 

collaborative STEAM projects 
focused on water conservation.  
PNGAus Connect has three key 
objectives:  
• Improve secondary school
education capabilities in targeted
areas
• Build student agency through the
development of leadership skills and
an expanded world view
• Strengthen the public diplomacy
between our two countries through
development of positive people-to-
people links with next generation
leaders and school educators.

Shortly after the first anniversary of 
the tragic passing of Senior Student 
Olivia Harwood and her mother 
Beverly, a group of past and present 
students gathered with members of 
the Harwood family to unveil the 
sunflower memorial in Olivia’s 
honour.  

In the latest 
stages of 2019 the 
Board of Trustees 
appointed a new 
principal for the 
2020 school year, 
Mrs Deanne 
Johnston.  She 
joins the 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar family 
with over the 25 years’ experience in 
curriculum and school management 
from various states of Australia and 
overseas. Her passion for all girls’ 
education will help strengthen the 
school’s future. Prior to her 
commencement, Deanne made two 
trips to Rockhampton to meet with 
the Executive, the staff and the wider 
community and support the transition 
to 2020. 

I would like to acknowledge the entire 
community including, staff, students, 
parents and friends for their 
continued support of and investment 
in Rockhampton Girls Grammar 
School.  
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Strategic Design 2017 ‐ 2021 

Our School 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School is a learning community founded on a commitment to excellence.  

Each member of our school family contributes to sustaining an environment in which individuals actively engage in 
their learning; where school values are embraced; where mutual and self-respect is practised; where community 
and global citizenship is fostered and where excellence in every endeavour is sought and celebrated.  

This statement of values reflects the amended Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 which guides ethical decision 
making and behaviour. The ethical principles are:  

 Integrity and impartiality
 Promoting the public good
 Commitment to the system of government
 Accountability and transparency

The School’s statement of values, established by staff and students in 2010, is published in all student planners and 
handbooks for parents, students and staff.  

Our History 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar opened its doors to the first four boarders and thirty-three day students on 11th March, 
1892. With Miss Helen E. Downs as foundation Headmistress, the School was officially opened on 19 April 1892.The 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School was established under the Grammar Schools Act 1860 and is one of the eight 
original Grammar Schools of Queensland. It continues to function as a Statutory Body under the Grammar Schools 
Act 2016. 

The Grammar Schools Act 2016 came into effect on 1 January 2017 and replaced the Grammar Schools Act 1975 
with modern legislation that aims to meet the contemporary needs of the school. The establishment and regulation of 
the School, including the constitution of the Board of Trustees and the functions of the Board, are now provided for in 
the Grammar School Act 2016. 

Operating Environment 

At the commencement of 2016, and with the appointment of a new principal on a 5-year contract, Independent Schools 
Queensland (ISQ) was engaged to perform a school review, focusing on: 

 Curriculum development and delivery
 Staff performance and development
 Enrolment trends

A list of recommendations can be summarised as: 
 Analyse and address enrolment trends in year 7 and boarding
 Re-address staff/student ratios especially Executive
 Link improvement agenda to staff professional development
 Emphasise academic outcomes e.g. NAPLAN
 Engage in a change process responsive to traditional values.

The model which underpins the Strategic Plan 2017-2021 is the National School Improvement Tool (ACER). 
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OUR VISION  

Women can achieve anything 

OUR MISSION 

To produce graduates who are clever, confident and connected.  

CLEVER Rockhampton Girls Grammar School will have a deliberate and strategic emphasis on learning outcomes.  
This will be achieved with a dual emphasis on knowing what to teach and how best to teach it.  Researched-backed 
programs will provide commonality of language around learning and promote a shared understanding of learning 
expectations.  First choice of university, vocational or employment pathway is the aim of our learning pathways.  

CONFIDENT Rockhampton Girls Grammar School will promote a female-centred educational community where young 
girls and women are encouraged to develop a range of skills that will lead them on a pathway of life long participation 
and learning.  Girls will be encouraged to grow academically, socially, emotionally and physically.  Emphasis on 
providing leadership opportunities and communities of action will allow girls to develop skills that enable them to 
participate and lead in the workplaces and communities.   

CONNECTED Rockhampton Girls Grammar School values its 125 years of providing a quality education to the women 
of Central Queensland and beyond.  We are the custodians of the stories of these women.  We will engage in the 
promotion of continuing and ongoing alumni networks and communities to provide aspiration and support for our 
emerging women of the future.  

Strategic Framework 

ACHIEVEMENT DRIVEN 
Maintain a clear incisive concentrically developed improvement agenda over 5 years 
Develop goals, targets and timelines that are explicitly stated across the organisation 
Emphasise the whole school responsibility of commitment to the central agenda 
Drive improvement through deep understanding of data and its role in performance 
Develop teacher understanding of high yield pedagogy 
Develop a clear link between the role of leadership and the use of data to promote performance culture 
Develop and maintain a curriculum and pedagogy framework 
COMMUNITY CONNECTED 
Acknowledge our custodianship of the history of the school 
Drive forward with robust communities of alumni which are regionally, nationally and internationally connected 
Promote an equitable outreach program that develops strong ties in all of our communities 
Develop an early learning foundation including pre-Prep  
Develop responsive living programs which cater for a range of residential needs and opportunities 
FINANCIALLY EFFECTIVE 
Develop clear lines of management structure that promote accountability and performance 
Engage in systemic programs and partnerships that can value add to the school’s programs without requiring 
standalone operations 
Develop efficiencies in systems and processes to allow for effective compliance and efficient operations 
Engage in professional review of the marketing models of the school 

Strategic Priorities 

The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School values the rigour of the National School Improvement Tool and the Strategic 
Plan has been developed across the following 7 domains: 

1. Development and maintenance of a specific improvement agenda 

2. Data driven outcomes focus 

3. Enhancement of a culture that promotes quality learning and welfare outcomes 

4. Targeted use of school resources 

5. Development of an expert and engaged teaching team 

6. Systematic whole school curriculum delivery 

7. Strong school and community partnerships 



ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL Annual Report Page | 10 

Strategy Report 

Our Community Commitment 

The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School, through the Strategic Intent 2017 – 2021, is fully committed to the 
Government’s community objectives, specifically by giving our children a great start through achieving better 
education outcomes, keeping our students healthy and safe through our pastoral care programs, nurturing a 
productive and fair workplace for all employees, the restoration and preservation of heritage listed buildings and 
creating a connected community of all key stakeholders. 

Progress on Components of the Strategic Priorities 

STRATEGIC 
PRIORITIES 

KEY 
PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

PROGRESS THROUGHOUT 2019 

Development 
and 
maintenance of 
a specific 
improvements 
agenda 

Development of a 
five-year specific 
improvement 
agenda. 

 Weekly executive meetings focussing on the strategic intent of the
school 

 Curriculum meetings held weekly to develop strategic improvement
in the housing and retrieval of Australian Curriculum and review 
strategic curriculum plan 

Development of a 
school wide data 
plan 

 Social and wellbeing survey completed and addressed at whole
staff meeting 

 Further refinement of the IDT data collection tool to automate the
collection and collation of Data form NAPLAN 

 Targeted re-teaching and re-testing on areas of greatest distance
from the nation 

Development of 
KPI’s and targets for 
executives 

 Weekly Executive team meetings held to review progress and
inform next phase of projects 

 Selected KPI’s reported on by executive members to the Board at
the Board’s request throughout year 

Develop a response 
to change 
management and 
professional 
development and 
support 

 Staff Completed Personal Development Plans, including the
identification of SMART goals based on personal and school wide 
improvement initiatives 

Data driven 
outcomes focus 

Teachers use data  P-10 Teachers implemented ‘2019 Internal Monitoring Schedule’
comprising NAPLAN preparation, PAT-R and PAT-M, SWST etc 

 Teaching staff analysed the data from the ‘2019 Internal Monitoring
Schedule’ at staff meetings for individual and cohort trends 

 Teaching staff analysed GPA data from reporting periods to identify
student, cohort and subject strengths and weaknesses 

 Teaching staff identified student achievement-improvement for
GPA, PAT-R and PAT-M 

 OP analyser and QTAC ranking tools were used to provide subject
specific advice to Senior School students 

Teachers moderate 
data 

 Teaching staff met in professional development sessions and staff
meetings to moderate data 

Teachers 
Communicate data 

 Primary, NAPLAN, middle school and senior school information
sessions were all held in 2019 

Expand flexible 
delivery of curriculum 
and programs 

 Students undertook a variety of external alternative programs
including university subjects, Certificate courses and school based 
traineeships 

 Students also participated in a variety of informal alternate in-school
programs including robotics 

 QMEA scheduled events
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Enhancement of 
a culture that 
promotes quality 
learning and 
welfare 
outcomes 

Develop a structured 
care program within 
a pastoral care 
framework 

 Vertical Care Groups were implemented in the middle school to aid
in the development of interpersonal and leadership skills 

 Primary School introduced ‘My Wellbeing Journals’ as the core of
the care program 

 Senior School Wellbeing program focussed on career, relationship
and mindfulness development 

 Sister Program was consolidated with 2+ meetings each term.
 Activities included icebreakers to get to know the new students to

trivia and physical changes that promote teamwork between the 
sisters 

 The sister program instils the family values and connectedness of
the girls 

Develop and support 
a School Welfare 
Team 

 Wellbeing team, consisting of Care Mentors, Nurse, Counsellor,
Head of Boarding, Learning Enhancement Teacher and Deputy 
Principal met weekly to discuss newly referred students and to 
follow up on progress of existing students on the wellbeing list. 

 An additional meeting of the Wellbeing leadership team met
independently to case manage high need students 

Develop Culture of 
inclusion and 
transition for new 
families to maintain 
engagement 

 A transition teacher position was created to support the critical time
of transition for new students both emotionally and academically 

 Principal’s morning tea was held early in Term 1 to welcome the
new students in an informal setting after the start of year events 
had been conducted along with the annual Welcome BBQ in 
January before first day of School 

Refine and maintain 
a holistic residential 
program that 
promotes personal 
and academic 
outcomes 

 Appointment of new on-site Head of Boarding from July 2019
 Appointment of Boarding Administration Assistant to oversee

boarding administration tasks and ensure boarder transport 
requirements are met 

 2 Full Days Professional Development provided to all boarding
supervisors to collaboratively work through Book 1 of 2 on Boarding 
Duty of Care Workbook developed by Australian Boarding Schools 
Association (ABSA) 

 All boarding staff were in attendance supporting the girls in prep
times. This included the School’s transition officer in attendance 
and supporting the girls at least one prep session per day. 

 Prep processes and expectations were tightened and improved in
Semester 2 including boarders handing their phones in during this 
time 

 Boarding survey conducted with Boarding families
Develop partnerships 
with community 
groups and business 
organisations to 
broaden student’s 
pathways. 

 Year 10 work experience was conducted in Term 3 during camp
week  

 Year 10 cohort conducted career-based care activities and
participated in a week-long work placement in an area of interest 
for future employment 

Targeted use of 
school 
resources 

Develop models for 
allocations of 
funds/budgets 

 Rolling Forecasts prepared monthly and reported to the Board of
Directors, responsive to changes in student numbers etc 

Develop and drive 
efficiencies in 
administration and 
processes 

 Broaden use of Parent Lounge payment gateway for an increasing
number of tours/excursions and extra-curricular activities 

 Continued development of electronic Boarding program to
streamline procedures regarding boarders leave, appointments and 
attendance 

 Continued development and implementation of Complispace
software to assist in ensuring updated policies, procedures and 
work practices are in place to ensure ongoing compliance with all 
regulatory requirements 
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Targeted Use of 
School 
Resources 
(cont). 

Maintain and achieve 
Budgetary balance 

 Preparation of Monthly Rolling Forecast reporting and monitoring by
the Audit and Risk Committee 

 Update of 5-year Projection Model for submission with relevant
Government Departments 

 Successful year financially, returning to an operating profit position
and increase in cash reserves to prepare for future planning of 
Facilities Upgrades through Capital Expenditure 

Development of 
an expert and 
engaged 
teaching team 

Teachers are 
professionally 
developed 

 iYouth Global was retained as the Professional Learning platform to
develop school specific learning modules based on our blended 
approach to Literacy combining ‘Reading to Learn’ and ‘Collins 
Writing’ programs 

 Purchase and roll out of Teachflix, eLearning Platform
Teachers work 
together 

 Time release timetabled to enable staff collaboration at weekly
Curriculum meetings 

Teachers build 
expertise in 
researched backed 
pedagogy 

 Further development of the Girls Grammar approach to schoolwide
literacy 

 Hosted and participated in Back to Front maths workshops

Teachers set goals  Teachers developed in collaboration with the Deputy Principal
and/or Principal to develop SMART goals based on personal and 
school wide initiatives guided by the AITSL standards 

Teachers wellbeing 
is important 

 Mike Walsh from Learning Curve engaged to conduct workshop
wellbeing scenarios with staff 

Teachers are 
community learners 

 Continued collaboration with local schools in coordinated
Professional Learning events to help develop curriculum and 
assessment for the incoming QCE and ATAR systems 

Systematic 
whole school 
curriculum 
delivery 

Teachers know the 
curriculum 

 Atlas checklist created, and staff trained
 Digital Technology implemented in 2018

Parents know the 
curriculum 

 Curriculum information evenings held
 Primary Information evening held
 NAPLAN information session held
 Camp Information afternoon held

Teachers are 
prepared for new 
schooling system 

 Professional Development implemented for senior syllabus through
QCAA 

 Leadership team upskilled in implementation of new senior syllabus
Focus on 
achievement 

 NAPLAN analysis identifying leading edge questions and target
students completed 

 Improvement vs Achievement matrix implemented Pat M and Pat R
Focus on wellbeing  Implementation of the new care structure

 Overview planning on school One Note book
 Atlas compliance checklist

Focus on ICT  Focussed PD session dedicated to STEAM planning
 Implementation of STEAM COPS group
 Timetable change to assign STEAM lesson in Junior secondary
 Introduction of a half yearly timetable solution with LOTE and

Technology 
Systematic 
whole school 
curriculum 
delivery (cont.) 

Focus on 
Assessment, 
Monitoring and 
Reporting  

 Excursion procedure developed to reduce impact of excursion on
assessment 

 Consistent whole school assessment template developed
 Implementation of an assessment block Year 7-12

Strong School 
and Community 
Partnerships 

Engage past 
students of the 
school to engage in 
its future 

 Large percentage of 2019 graduating class took out Life
Membership to the RGGS Old Girls Association 

 Use of the Past Students section in the TASS School Management
System to capture recent graduates contact details 

Develop community 
links and profile 

 Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD) held quarterly
regional meetings at the school throughout 2019 

 Strong student representation at community events including
ANZAC Day services and march, Red Shield Appeal 
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Enrolments 
2019 2018 2017 2016 

Boarders  97 88 96 98 

Day Students 191 193 190 214 

Total  287 281 286 312 

Enrolments (August 2019 census) 

School enrolments as at the August 2019 census date (as tabled above) showed the total number of students at 287. 
Student numbers at the end of 2019 year were 290, showing our highest number since 2016.  

2019 2018 2017 2016 

Years P-6 85 92 88 104 

Years 7-12  202 189 198 208 

Total  287 281 286 312 

Enrolments Year Level (Aug 2019 census) 

Year  
Year 8 
Base  

Year  
Year 
12  

Retention 
rate %  

2011 39 2015 50 128.2 

2012 44 2016 47 106.8 

2013 36 2017 40 111.0 

2014 37 2018 37 100.0 

2015 20 2019 30 150.0 

Student apparent retention rate 

The Year 8 to 12 apparent retention rate is defined as the number of full-time students in Year 12 in any given year 
expressed as the percentage of those students who started secondary school five years previously.  

2019  2018 2017 2016 

Enrolments  288 281 286 312 

Teaching Staff  28.6 30.0 30.0 29.3 

Ratio  10.06 9.36 9.53 10.64 

Student Academic Outcomes 

NAPLAN 

The 2019 cohort continued an ongoing trend of performing well in NAPLAN testing. Cohort wide results are used to 
inform teaching and to identify areas for future growth.  

Year 3 

The Year 3 cohort performed above state and national mean scores in all areas. 100% of students were above NMS 
in all areas.  

Year  Cohort  Reading  Writing  Spelling  Grammar/Punctuation  Numeracy  Total 
Score 

3  Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

RGGS  475  100  440  100  426  100  502  100  458  100  2301 

Australia  432.3  96.1  423.1  96.9  418.7  93.3  439.8  95.1  408.1  95.7  2122 

Qld  425.2  96.1  412.2  96.3  410.0  92.8  430.5  95.0  397.4  95.2  2075 
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Year 5 

The Year 5 cohort performed above state and national mean scores in all areas. 100% of students were above NMS 
in all areas.  

Year  Cohort  Reading  Writing  Spelling  Grammar/Punctuation  Numeracy  Total 
Score 

5  Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

RGGS  535  100  484  100  512  100  546  100  522  100  2599 

Australia  506.0  94.9  473.9  93.1  500.7  94.1  499.1  92.6  495.8  95.6  2476 

Qld  501.7  94.7  463.3  91.2  494.2  94.0  495.7  92.6  490.9  95.5  2446 

Year 7 

The Year 7 cohort performed above state and national scores and NMS% in all areas apart from the Numeracy Mean 
Scale Score.  

Year  Cohort  Reading  Writing  Spelling  Grammar/Punctuation  Numeracy  Total 
Score 

7  Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

RGGS  560  100  528  95  567  97  566  95  546  100  2767 

Australia  546.0  94.7  513.0  89.8  545.6  93.3  541.7  92.6  554.1  94.7  2700 

Qld  542.5  94.9  502.0  86.8  542.0  93.4  540.1  92.8  547.2  94.5  2674 

Year 9 

The Year 9 cohort performed above state and national scores and NMS% in all areas apart from the Numeracy Mean 
Scale Score.  

Year  Cohort  Reading  Writing  Spelling  Grammar/Punctuation  Numeracy  Total 
Score 

9  Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

Average 
Score 

%above 
NMS 

RGGS  583  97  554  84  583  100  590  97  576  100  2886 

Australia  580.4  92.0  548.9  82.9  582.3  92.3  573.2  89.8  592.0  96.3  2877 

Qld  570.3  90.6  533.5  77.6  577.3  82.5  570.3  89.7  584.5  96.0  2836 

Queensland Core Skills Test 

In 2019 the RGGS cohort displayed a downward performance in the percentage of students in the A and B range over 
recent years. The proportion of D grades also decreased resulting in a relatively low QCS gini score. 
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Overall Positions 

The 2019 OP eligible cohort achieved results between OP3-19 students. As outlined above, there was a relatively 
small QCS gini score which resulted in a compression of OPs as compared with historical results. 

Tertiary Entrances (QTAC)  

It is estimated (at time of writing) that 67% of students will receive their first preference for university and 100% will 
receive an offer.  

International Competitions and Assessments for Schools (ICAS) 

In conjunction with The University of New South Wales (UNSW), Girls Grammar conducts the delivery of the 
academically rigorous ICAS testing each year. Registration to sit ICAS is available to self-nominated students.  

ICAS Testing Merits Credits Distinctions High 
Distinctions 

Participants 

ICAS Digital Technologies - 
Years 2 to 10 

1 1 1 0 7 
(43% awarded) 

ICAS Science - Years 2 to 12  4 1 0 0 19 
(26% awarded) 

ICAS Spelling - Years 3 to 7 2 2 0 0 14 
(29% awarded) 

ICAS Writing - Years 2 to 12  1 4 4 1 16 (63% awarded) 
ICAS English - Years 2 to 12 1 3 5 0 21 

(43% awarded) 
ICAS Mathematics - Years 2 to 
12  

3 5 0 0 24 
(33% awarded) 

Academic Colours 

In 2019 academic success was formally recognised through the awarding of Academic Excellence (full colours) and 
Academic Merit (half colours). Academic colour recipients are summarised in the table below. Individual Year Level 
Dux, Proxime Accessit and overall subject award winners were recognised at our Speech Night ceremony.  

Semester 1 Semester 2 
Year 
Level 

Academic 
Merit 

Academic 
Excellence 

Total # 
students 

Academic 
Merit 

Academic 
Excellence 

Total # 
students 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 

0 
1 
1 
5 
8 
2 
2 
3 
4 

2 
2 
1 
9 
3 
4 
8 
8 
5 

8 
8 
20 
38 
25 
34 
23 
49 
31 

1 
2 
2 
5 
9 
1 
3 
7 
N/A 

1 
1 
1 
9 
4 
5 
4 
13 
N/A 

8 
8 
23 
41 
28 
35 
24 
46 
N/A 
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Our People 

Workforce Planning, Attraction, Retention and Performance 

One of the School’s strategic priorities is to “Develop and expert an engaged teaching team” whereby the school 
strives to provide all staff with extensive professional development (PD) opportunities, encourage cohesive teaching 
practices and to have teachers build expertise in researched backed teaching pedagogy.  

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School supports flexible workplace and family-friendly arrangements whilst 
endeavouring to assist staff to achieve work-life balances through: 

 offering job share, part time and term time employment arrangements
 flexibility in working hours for support staff during school vacation periods
 access to personal, carers, maternity and special leave to cater for family situations

Staff at Girls Grammar are employed in accordance with the terms and conditions outlined within the variation of the 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar Enterprise Agreement 2017 and individual letters of appointment.   

Some of the professional development opportunities given to staff throughout the 2019 year included the following 
seminars/sessions: 

 Achievable Wellbeing
 TeachFlix online learning platform
 Back to Front Math Lunches
 Strategic Planning Consultancy
 Early Teacher Career Program
 Senior Assessment and Tertiary
 Intervention that Works
 School Curriculum – Leaders
 State Drama Conference
 Heads of Grammar Schools Conference
 Duty of Care – Boarding
 Suicide Prevention and Staff Self Care
 Annual compliance training including Student Protection

In addition to the above PD opportunities, Rockhampton Girls Grammar School implements the following strategies to 
attract and retain an inclusive, diverse and capable workforce and to position the sector for the future of work: 

 Inviting international speakers to develop school based pedagogical framework
 Support Central Queensland University in accepting students currently undertaking their Bachelor of

Education studies through their work placement program
 Building collegial partnerships with local schools to deliver programs to upskill regional teachers and provide

networking opportunities for our current teaching staff

Members of the Executive and management are encouraged to attend PD opportunities that are specific to their roles.  
Examples of PD activities carried out by members of the Executive during 2019 are: 

 Attendance at State Conference of Australian School Business Administrators by Business Manager
 Completion of ISQ Aspiring Leaders Program by Acting Principal
 Principals and Business Manager State Conference

To ensure the recruitment process is fair and just, Rockhampton Girls Grammar School adopted the Recruitment 
Policy made available through Complispace. The policy clearly outlines the process of recruitment from the initial 
stages of identifying the position needed, to the interview stages and finally appointment.  

The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School have restructured the induction process, streamlining the process and 
induction time. The induction process now includes face to face interaction as well as an online component. New 
employees will be inducted upon commencement with the Human Resource Officer and School Principal.   

At Rockhampton Girls Grammar School, we value our team and understand the importance of recognition and 
engagement. In 2019 the School introduced the Employee of the Month scheme. Nominations are put forward by the 
staff via an online form. At the end of each month, the nominations are then put in front of the Executive team and the 
Human Resource Officer to determine the winner. The Employee of the Month is announced on the First Monday of 
each month by the Principal at Staff Briefings. The nominations submitted for each employee are then sent to the 
individual employee recognising their efforts.  
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Staff Profile  

At August 2019 census, Girls Grammar had 32 teaching, 26 non-teaching and 10 boarding staff members who are led 
by an executive team.  

FTE 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Teaching 28.6 30.0 30.0 29.3 

Non-Teaching  19.4 18.15 19.0 21.4 

Boarding  7 6 7.2 10.8 

Total  55 54.15 56.2 61.5 

FTE Staff information (August 2019 census) 

Highest level of 
attainment 

Teachers  

Doctorate  1 

Masters 2

Bachelor Degree 29 

Total  32 

Teacher qualifications (August 2019 census) 

Staff Retention 

From the end of 2019, the School achieved a permanent retention rate of 77.10% and a permanent separation rate of 
22.90%.  

Retention/Separation Full-Time FTE Part Time Total (FTE) Retention % Separation 
% 

Resigned 10 3 12.6

Retired 0 0 0

Redundancy  0 0 0 

TOTALS 10 3 12.6 77.10% 22.90% 

Financial Results 2019 

Girls Grammar operates as a not-for-profit entity and reinvests revenue raised back into the School through capital 
infrastructure and strategic planning for long-term financial stability. 

This financial summary provides an overview of Rockhampton Girls Grammar School’s financial performance for the 
2019 year.  A comprehensive set of financial statements is provided in the appendices to this report. 

Key Financial Indicators 

Ratio/Indicator 2016 
(000’s) 

2017 
(000’s) 

2018 
(000’s) 

2019 
(000’s) 

Operating Income (excl. cap 
grants)

$9,053 $8,633 $8,340 $9,185 

Operating Expenditure $9,322 $8,602 $8,358 $8,946 

Operating Profit/(Loss) ($269) $31 ($18) $241 

EBIDA (Earnings Before Interest, 
Depreciation and Amortization)

$485 $797 $705 $923 
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Ratio/Indicator 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Total Students 312 286 281 288 

Working Capital Ratio (CA/CL) 0.58 0.67 0.71 0.77 

Debt per Student $11,116 $11,112 $10,222 $8,854 

Capital Re-investment Ratio 
(Capital Expenditure/Depreciation)

79% 27% 27% 76% 

Operating Income 

Total operating income for the year was $9,185Mill (compared to $8.340 Mill in 2018) Tuition Fees, Boarding Fees 
and Commonwealth Grants make up the majority of Girls Grammar operating income in 2019. An increase in student 
numbers in both the day and boarding school was the main reason for the significant growth in income for the 2019 
year.  

Other School income includes Out of School Hours and Vacation Care income, Infrastructure Levy as well as the 
rental of School facilities and residential premises located on Girls Grammar land.  The School is looking to secure 
additional sources of revenue where possible through the rental of school facilities.   

Operating Expenses 

The largest portion of the School’s operating expenses in any year relates to staff costs. 

A salary and wage increase of 2.7% was passed on to all employees from 01 July 2019 under the terms of the current 
Enterprise Bargaining Agreement. This area of operating expenditure will continue to dominate the majority of Girls 
Grammar’s costs due to the importance of retaining highly qualified and dedicated staff.   

Other categories of general operating expenditure were maintained at similar levels to 2018.  Interest costs are 
reducing as debt levels continue to be repaid.  The majority of the increase in employee costs for 2019 relate to 
significant increases to Long Service Leave and Annual Leave provisions as staff are reaching longer periods of 
tenure. 

31%

44%

17%

8%

0%

Operating Income 2019

31% Tuition Fees

44% Grant Income

18% Boarding

6% Other Income

0.4% Donations

60%

25%

6%

5% 2%
2%

Operating Expenditure 2019

60% Employee Costs

25% Supplies &
Services
6% Depreciation

5% Maintenance &
Repairs
2% Operating Leases
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Bursaries and Scholarships 

Girls Grammar offers General Excellence scholarships for students entering Years 7 to 12. These are offered for a 
period of three years: Middle School, Years 7-9 and Senior School, Years 10-12. The School also offers bursaries to 
assist students to gain access to a quality education at Girls Grammar.   Bursaries are necessary to ensure that we 
can support those families within our school community facing financial difficulty due to factors including drought and 
other economic challenges facing our regions.  The School will continue to focus fundraising efforts to allow 
scholarship and bursary appeals to continue to support these students.  

Summary of Financial Performance 2019 

In 2019, Girls Grammar School’s operating result saw the School return to an operating profit position of $241,000.  
This is the strongest profit result for the School since 2015.  This allowed the School to increase cash reserves by 
$250,000 whilst investing a significant amount in Capital Expenditure along with further reduction of debt throughout 
the year.  This is a strong result given the challenging economic climate of the region.  Enrolment numbers grew 
steadily throughout the year and additional sources of revenue were sourced where possible.   This result was also 
achieved through general cost savings.   

Factors that continue to influence the School’s financial position include the following: 
 Wage increases and rising overhead costs
 The unpredictability of student enrolments
 External factors influencing family’s financial circumstances and therefore affordability of private education
 Increasing competition from both private and independent schools within the Rockhampton region

Capital Expenditure throughout 2019

 Full Installation of LED lighting throughout the School
 Air-conditioning installed throughout Kollar House Boarding (Centrally controlled Split Systems)
 Blinds installed throughout Kollar House (both internal and external)
 Carpeting the Patterson House Staff Room
 Plant & equipment and furniture purchases throughout various administrative, boarding and tuition areas of the

school
 Purchase of additional laptops and tablets as part of the School Laptop Program
 Preliminary works on Covered Netball Court Project
 Significant investment in Software Development

Future Capital Works

Future Plans for the school include a number of projects:

 Refurbishing and shading the netball courts
 Refurbishing the Pool Change Rooms
 Server Replacement
 Classroom Upgrades
 Refurbishment and Air-conditioning of Luck House Boarding for Junior students.
 Construction of a new parking and drop off facility for the primary school
 Resurfacing the dining terrace area
 Replacement of the Health Centre with a Health and Wellbeing Centre
 The creation of better sports oval or upgrade of the current sports field area
 Restoration work for the heritage listed Paterson House and precinct. This involves upgrades to technology as

well as replacing decaying building fabric, so the building can continue to serve the school in the 21st century
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School Location and Contact Details 
Girls Grammar is located on approximately six hectares of Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) land on the corner of 
Denham and Agnes Streets, overlooking the city centre of Rockhampton, Queensland. Contact details are as follows:  

School Address  PO Box 776 
ROCKHAMPTON QLD 4700 

Telephone 07 4930 0900 

Facsimile  07 4922 4809 

Email Address Reception@rggs.qld.edu.au 

Web Address www.rggs.qld.edu.au 

The Board of Trustees 
The Board of Trustees of Rockhampton Girls Grammar School is constituted under the Grammar Schools Act 2016. 
The Board of Trustees comprises of at least seven but no more than nine members, each of whom serves four years. 

Of these members, four members are nominated by the Minister, three members are elected by and from the roll of 
electors who have donated at least the electoral eligibility amount as prescribed by the Act and up to two additional 
members are chosen by the Board and nominated by the Minister.  The new Board was approved by the Governor in 
Council on 26 May 2016.  

Board Membership:  1 January 2019 – 31 December 2019 

 Ministerial Nominees 
 Mr John (Ross) Johnson, (Board Chairperson) BBus, LLB, GAICD
 Mr Noel Livingston, (Deputy Chairperson) FREIQ
 Mrs Anni Bastin-Byrne, BBus, FCPA
 Mrs Gail Godwin-Smith, GAICD

Elected representatives  
 Miss Jennifer Luck, BEd, DipTch, GradDipTch (Lib), TEFL
 Ms Hilarie Dunn, GCBus
 Mr Kenneth (Ken) Murphy, BAppSc (Rural Tech)

Ex-officio Members of the Board  
 Mrs Christine Hills (Principal 01.01.19 – 20.01.19) BA, DipEd, FACELQ (Hon)
 Mrs Michelle Gouge, (Acting Principal 21.01.19 – 31.10.19)  BA, DipEd, FACELQ (Hon)
 Mr Ryan Cheers, (Acting Principal 01.10.19 – 13.12.19)
 Mrs Clair Applewaite, (Business Manager and Board Secretary) BBus, CA

Board Statutory Functions and Powers 
In accordance with the Grammar Schools Act 2016, the Board of Trustees has all the powers of an individual, and 
may, for example – 

(a) enter into contracts; and
(b) acquire, hold, deal with and dispose of property; and
(c) do anything else necessary or convenient to be done in performing its functions.

Name of Government body:  The Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

Act or instrument Grammar Schools Act 2016 

Functions The functions of the Board are to:  
 supervise, maintain and control the operations of the School
 erect, alter, add to, purchase or sell buildings used or to be used for the School
 effect general improvements to the premises used or to be used for the School
 provide an educational program for the School
 make policies and procedures about:

o fees and charges payable in relation to students enrolled or to be enrolled at the School
o discipline and conduct of students enrolled at the School
o management and control of the School

Governance Report
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Achievements Oversight of the strategic plan 2017 – 2021, Cyclical Review Process and Monitoring of 

performance against strategic objectives.   Successful Principal recruitment process throughout 
2019, with appointment commencing January 2020. 

Financial reporting The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School is a statutory body and therefore required to produce 
audited statutory accounts with a 31 December reporting period. 

Remuneration All members of the Board perform their duties on a part-time basis for no remuneration. 

Position Name Meetings/sessions 
attendance 

Approved annual, sessional 
or daily fee  

Approved sub-
committee fees 
if applicable 

Actual 
fees 
received  

Chair John Ross Johnson 7 N/A N/A N/A 

Deputy Chair Noel Livingston 7 N/A N/A N/A 

Treasurer Anni Bastin-Byrne 7 N/A N/A N/A

Ministerial Nominee Gail Godwin-Smith 5 N/A N/A N/A 

Elected Representative Kenneth (Ken) 
Murphy 

6 N/A N/A N/A

Elected Representative Hilarie Dunn 6 N/A N/A N/A 

Elected Representative Jennifer Luck 6 N/A N/A N/A 

No. scheduled 
meetings/sessions 

7  Total out of pocket expenses  N/A 

Board Reporting 

The Board of Trustees meets most months of the year. Each month the Principal presents a report to the Board which 
outlines educational initiatives, staff and student welfare issues, and any other matters that require Board consent or 
that could be of concern to the Board.  

From information contained in these reports, enrolments are monitored against budget to ensure that the School is on 
target to meet the performance indicator benchmarks established in the Strategic Plan.  

The Board is supported by the Board Secretary and two sub-committees: Audit and Risk Committee and the 
Workplace Health and Safety Committee.  

Audit and Risk Committee  
The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the Board and was chaired Mr Kenneth Murphy throughout the 
2019 year. 

The Committee’s role is to oversee the financial position of the School through monitoring of the budget, managing 
bad debts, setting financial policy, addressing financial and operational risk management and reporting matters for 
further discussion to the Board.  

The Audit and Risk Committee in 2019 is made up of the following Board representatives: 

 Mrs Anni Bastin-Byrne (Treasurer)
 Mr John (Ross) Johnson (Board Chairperson)
 Mr Noel Livingston (Deputy Board Chairperson)
 Mr Kenneth Murphy

The School’s Business Manager attends the meetings and provides the Audit and Risk Committee with the latest 
financial figures for review, discussion and recommendation. The Principal also attends the Audit and Risk Committee 
meetings. All members of the Audit and Risk Committee perform their duties on a part-time basis for no remuneration. 
The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for addressing the School’s Audit and, due to the size of the School, the 
Audit and Risk Committee oversees the School’s risk management.  
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Some of the key achievements of the Audit and Risk Committee throughout 2019 were: 

 Further development of a 5-year rolling forecast
 Review of Risk Management Framework before presentation to the Board
 Oversight of improvements to Internal Control Framework
 Update of the Audit and Risk Committee Charter
 Continued review of existing policies and procedures
 Development of new policies and procedures as identified by the Board of Trustees

Audit and Risk Committee Attendance  

The Audit and Risk Committee met on nine (9) occasions during 2019. Attendances were as follows:  

Kenneth Murphy 9/9 Michelle Gouge 8/8
Anni Bastin-Byrne 8/9 Christine Hills 1/1
John Ross Johnson 8/9 Clair Applewaite 9/9 
Noel Livingston 8/9 Ryan Cheers 2/2 

The audit committee has observed the terms of its charter and had due regard to the Audit Committee Guidelines. 

Workplace Health & Safety Committee  

The Workplace Health & Safety Committee meets and then presents a report to the Board, each term, on workplace 
health and safety matters. The Committee met four times during 2019 (once each term) to discuss requirements of the 
Work Health and Safety Act 2011, Fire Safety, ways of improving existing WHS practices and analysing the response 
to any incidents that took place. 

The committee members presented reports to the School Board each term with recommendations about any safety 
issues in their respective areas of responsibility, which were discussed at Committee level: 

 Action plans were put in place to address WHS issues brought to the Committee
 Completion of WHS assessment of the School facilities and planning for the correction where issues were

identified by the Safety Officer and other staff
 Continuing the introduction of “Complispace Risk and Assurance software”
 Conducting the annual emergency response training for staff
 Whole of Campus inspection by the Fire Brigade
 Conducting fire and lockdown drills in Boarding and Day School
 Inclusion of WHS notices and exclusions as necessary around the School
 The presentation of each prepared report to the committee with a Q&A
 Whole of campus testing and installation inspection by Wormald Fire Services
 Discussion about further developments in each area of reporting
The Committee completed and consolidated WHS initiatives carried over from 2018. The Reports presented at each
meeting include: - Health Centre report, accident and injury report, rehabilitation report, security log, fire evacuation
log, science safety report and facility inspection report and actions.

Membership of the Girls Grammar Workplace Health & Safety (WHS) Committee for 2019 included: 

 Facilities & Services Manager, Mr Robin Fay (Chairperson and Fire Safety Officer)
 Workplace Health & Safety Officer (WHSO), Ms Nadia Hoare
 Acting Principal, Ms Michelle Gouge (Terms 1 – 3) and Ryan Cheers (Term 4(Fire Warden))
 Health Centre Coordinator, Mrs Linda Knowles
 Board Member, Mr Ken Murphy
 Science Representative, Mrs Christie Dey
 Representation from teaching and administrative staff, Mrs Veronica Miller-Waugh
 Director of Boarding, Ms Stacey McCarthy
 Buildings & Grounds, Mr David Eyles
 Chef, Ms Kylie Maconachie
 P&F Representative, Mrs Rebecca McMahon
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Organisational Structure 2019 

All personnel have overall responsibility to the Principal, who in turn reports to the Board of Trustees, for the strategic 
and operational activities at the School. The reporting lines of all personnel and Organisational Structure for 2019 are 
shown in the organisational table below. 

The organisation Structure of the School was adjusted for Semester Two and operated under the below structure 
following the removal of the dual role of Director of Boarding and Student Welfare: 

R
o
ck
h
am

p
to
n
 G
ir
ls
 G
ra
m
m
ar
 S
ch
o
o
l B

o
ar
d
 o
f 
Tr
u
st
e
e
s 

P
ri
n
ci
p
al
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 P
ri
n
ci
p
al
 

Dean of Senior Studies  Sports Master 

Classroom Teachers 

Teacher Aides 

Sports and Clubs Staff 

Extra‐curricular providers 

Dean of ICT  ICT Technician 

Head of Boarding  Boarding Supervisors 

Cape York Program Staff 

Wellbeing Team  School Nurse 

Transition Officer 

Wellbeing Officer 

School Counsellor 

Care Teachers 

Learning Enhancement Teacher 

B
u
si
n
e
ss
 M

an
ag
e
r 
an

d
 B
o
ar
d
 

Se
cr
e
ta
ry
 

Facilities and Services 
Manager 

Grounds Staff 

Cleaning Staff 

Laundry Staff 

Spotless Contract staff 

Accountant  Human Resource Officer 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Receivable 

Student Services Officer 

Administration Staff 

OSHC Staff 

Community and Alumni 
Development Officer 

Alumni Liaison Officer 



ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL Annual Report Page | 24 

Governance Report 
Senior Executive 

Mrs Christine Hills  BA, DipEd, FACELQ (Hon) 
Principal (01.01.19 – 19.04.19) 
(Responsible for leading the school towards its vision and to involve all staff in that leadership.  
The Principal is both adviser and Chief Executive Officer to the Board),   
Christine has over 10 years’ experience as a school Principal.  Chris’s career as a 
Principal commenced in Moura in 2008 progressing to Glenmore State School and 
Gladstone State High before receiving the role of Principal of Rockhampton Girls 
Grammar School in January 2016.  During this time, Christine has received a Public 
Education Foundation Scholarship in 2014 and completed leadership courses at 
Harvard and Cambridge. Christine’s work with school leadership teams and school 
improvement was acknowledged by the Australian Council of Educational Leadership 
(Qld) with an Honorary Fellowship in 2014 and by the National Excellence in Teaching 
Awards Program with a national award for leadership in 2013.  

Mrs Michelle Gouge  BEd (Primary), BBus(Marketing) 
Acting Principal (21.01.19 – 31.10.19) 
(Responsible for leading the school towards its vision and to involve all staff in that leadership.  
The Principal is both adviser and Chief Executive Officer to the Board),   
Michelle joined the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School in January 2016 in the 
position of Director of Primary.  Michelle carried out this position for 12 months before 
receiving the Deputy Principal position in 2017.  Prior to this, Michelle held the 
position of Deputy Principal at Moranbah State School and a short-term contract as 
Principal of Allenstown State School.  Michelle has been involved in Education since 
2000 following the completion of her Bachelor of Education.  Michelle also holds a 
Bachelor of Business majoring in Marketing. 

Mr Ryan Cheers  BBiomedSc; GradDipEd, Cert III IT, Cert IV TAE 
Acting Deputy Principal (21.01.19 – 31.10.19) 
Acting Principal (31.10.19 – 13.12.19) 
 (Responsible for the support of the Principal through leading the school towards its vision and 
leading the school in implementation of the curriculum and effective pedagogical practices.) 
Ryan joined the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School in January 2011 in the position 
of Director of Interactive Learning Technologies.  Ryan carried out this position for 8 
years receiving the Deputy Principal (acting) position in 2019.  Prior to this, Ryan held 
various curriculum leadership positions in Brisbane.  Ryan has been involved in 
Education since 1997 following the completion his Bachelor of Biomedical Sciences 
and Graduate Diploma of Education in 1996.  Ryan also holds Vocational certificates 
in Teaching and Assessment, Information Technology and Fitness. 

Ms Bernadette Hyde-Mewburn, DipJustAdmin(Mgt), AssDipPub (Admin), 
DipCommunityServ (Youth Justice), DipEd (Primary)  
Director of Boarding and Student Welfare (01.01.16 – 24.05.19) 
(Responsible for the oversight of the Boarding and Student wellbeing programs of the school) 
Bernadette joined the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School in January 2016. 
Bernadette has worked in boarding schools during the last 16 years with 13 years in 
senior management.  Her roles have included the day to day management and care of 
the boarders, support and direction of the boarding staff, review and implementation of 
boarding best practices.  Prior to this, Bernadette had an extensive career in the public 
sector, including Child Safety, Family Services and Law Enforcement. 
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Ms Stacey McCarthy, Dip T, B Ed 
Head of Boarding (22.07.19 – current) 
(Responsible for the oversight of Boarders, Boarding facilities and Boarding staff) 
Stacey joined Rockhampton Girls Grammar School in July 2019.  Stacey’s boarding 
and teaching career has spanned 30 years across Queensland and Victoria. She 
started her career as a Primary Teacher, working as a classroom and PE and 
Distance Education (School of the Air) teacher and as Head of Curriculum during her 
teaching career. In 2010, Stacey started her first role in boarding. 

Mrs Clair Applewaite, BBus(Acc), CA 
Business Manager and Secretary to the Board of Trustees  
(Responsible for the oversight of the finance department and budgetary and statutory reporting 
requirements of the School) 
Clair joined Rockhampton Girls Grammar School in January 2017.  Her finance career 
spans more than 15 years and prior to commencing at the school, she worked for 13 
years at a local Chartered Accounting Firm spanning the disciplines of Business 
Advisory, Taxation and Audit.  Clair completed her Accounting degree in 2003 and 
became a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 2007.   

Middle Management 

 Dr John Fry, Dean of Senior Studies  BAppSc (Phys) (Hons); GradDipT (Sec); PhD
 Mr Ryan Cheers, Director of ILT  BBiomedSc; GradDipEd, Cert III IT, Cert IV TAE
 Mr Robin Fay, Facilities and Services Manager  BDesSt (Arch)

Statutory Requirements 

Risk Management 

A risk register is maintained for the School and reviewed bi-annually by the Audit and Risk Committee and reported 
through to the Board of Trustees.  The risk register addresses risks across the school in a range of categories 
including governance, financial, regulatory, student welfare, staff, physical, external and fraud. 

Towards the end of the 2019 year the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed a Risk Management Framework that was 
later adopted by the Board of Trustees.  The Board has directed that the framework be implemented throughout the 
2020 year and requires the development and organisational use of the Assurance module within the Complispace 
software suite.  The Assurance module within Complispace provides a complete set of tools for ensuring regulatory 
obligations are met.  Assurance allows for task management that link to School Policies and Procedures, assists with 
assessing and managing risks, capturing incidents, managing forms, tracking staff and volunteers credentials and 
provides automated follow up of assigned tasks to relevant staff members. 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School has not established a formal internal audit function due to its size.  The school 
has a number of practices in place that help it to confirm the appropriateness of its operations such as: 

 Monthly Audit and Risk committee and quarterly Workplace Health and Safety (WH&S) meetings are held to
monitor and review the financial and WH&S procedures and report any identified risks or issues to the Board
of Trustees.

 Every Five (5) years Queensland Non-State Schools are required to participate in the Non-State Schools
Accreditation Board’s (NSSAB) cyclical review programme to ensure they are giving appropriate attention to
meeting their legislated requirements for accreditation, through their organisation structure, policies and
procedures.  The school participated in this throughout the 2017 year with a final report lodged with the
NSSAB in early 2018 resulting in a renewed accreditation.  The School will complete this process again
throughout 2022.

 The school’s financial benchmarks are monitored and reviewed yearly by an independent external
organisation.

 The Department of Education meet with the School annually to discuss its financial performance and review
5-year forecast models.
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Internal Audit 

The Audit & Risk Committee operates as the School’s internal audit function acknowledging that there is no formal 
internal audit function established aside from this committee’s functions.  This committee reports directly to the Board 
of Trustees on all aspects of external audit procedures, financial considerations, statutory requirements, budget 
parameters and associated financial management and risk related matters. 

External Scrutiny 

Queensland Audit Office Report to Parliament 

A report is prepared by Queensland Audit Office each year and is tabled in Parliament summarising the results of the 
QAO’s financial audit of all Queensland Universities and Grammar Schools, of which Rockhampton Girls Grammar 
School is included.  The report provides an overview of finances and the financial accounting issues that arose during 
the audit process.  ‘Education:2018-19 results of financial audits (Report 19: 2018-19)’.  There were no matters 
contained in the QAO report specifically addressed to Rockhampton Girls Grammar School.  The Education Sector as 
a whole was deemed to be financially sustainable however, continuing to face challenges or rising employee costs 
and changes in grant funding under the recent reforms.  Rockhampton Girls Grammar reflects this advice from QAO in 
its processes related to annual budgeting, rolling forecasting and strategic planning. 

Annual Audit  

The Board of Trustees of Rockhampton Girls Grammar School is a body corporate originally established in 1892 
under the Grammar Schools Act 1860. In 2019, the School operated under the Grammar Schools Act 2016, the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009 and the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 and as a statutory 
body under the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982.  

The Board is subject to an annual audit by the Queensland Audit Office (QAO) under the Auditor- General Act 2009. 
During the years 2016 – 2018 Bentley’s Brisbane (Audit) Pty Ltd was awarded the QAO contract to audit Rockhampton 
Girls Grammar School.  QAO have carried out this function in-house for the 2019 year. 

The results of the 2019 Annual Audit were satisfactory and accordingly, the Queensland Audit Office have issued an 
unmodified audit report.  

All Grants received by the State and Federal Government are verified and an annual acquittal form forwarded to ISQ 
and the appropriate Government department for acquittal of grants received. 

Information Systems and Record Keeping 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School uses data collected from a range of sources to inform its decision-making 
processes.  The Alpha School System (TASS) is the main program used for record keeping purposes and includes all 
data relating to student, parent, staffing, finance, fixed assets, payroll and human resource management. 

The TASS information system is currently used to report on financial and operating performance to the Board of Trustees 
on a regular basis.  An approved annual budget is used to monitor financial performance on a monthly basis and further 
forecasts are developed when necessary as circumstances change. 

Management and support of the School’s Information Systems are the responsibility of the Dean of ILT.  The Director is 
supported by an IT Administrator who specialise in information systems. These employees are responsible for 
supporting infrastructure and ensuring compliance with the processes and protocols that have been implemented, to 
ensure that accurate record-keeping and data storage are maintained. 

The school is currently transitioning from an online network folder system to a cloud-based system to assist with the 
management of electronic records.  The school is working towards a continual improvement program of digitising 
documents but already allows for electronic updating of parental records, electronic sign off for excursion consent and 
electronic leave approval.  The School has scanning enabled multifunction copiers to allow for digitisation of other 
documentation.   

The School also uses Office 365 as an electronic learning management system to enhance delivery and storage of 
curriculum resources. During 2019, the school continued the development of Complispace Policy Plus and Complispace 
Learn as a digital platform for delivery and storage of Policy, procedure, Incident identification and mitigation; and staff 
professional development. 
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Records Governance Policy 

The Records Governance Policy is a fit-for-purpose records and information governance policy that recognises the 
diversity of Queensland Government agencies with a flexible and simplified approach to records management and 
contains the following requirements.  This policy was introduced in April 2019 and replaces the existing Information 
Standard 40 and 31: Recordkeeping and Retention and Disposal of Public Records.  

The School plans to throughout 2020, develop a Recordkeeping Policy that aligns with the requirements of the new 
Records Governance policy.  Policies for General Records Management are contained within the Complispace Policy 
Suite that is being implemented by the School throughout 2020.  These policies will be reviewed and, tailored and 
implemented throughout the year. 

In relation to disposal of records, Rockhampton Girls Grammar School is bound by the Education and Training Sector 
retention and disposal schedule issued by the State Archivist.  The school is in a process of review of the Schedule and 
as such has not yet disposed of any records. The School will work through a process of transferring necessary 
documents to the State Archivist where necessary and disposal where appropriate. 

Personal laptop program 

In 2019, Girls Grammar continued the roll-out of the one-to-one laptop program. Every student in Years 4 to 12 had a 
School owned touch screen tablet PC as well as the software required for their learning programs.   

With today’s ever-changing technology, students are interacting with each other in new and exciting ways; online is 
‘normal’ and communication doesn’t have to synchronous. So why should access to learning be restricted to School 
days and classroom hours? With the help of a significant ICT upgrade and laptop program, Girls Grammar is taking full 
advantage of technology by providing an online learning platform that enables students to interact with each other and 
teachers whenever they need.   
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Open Data 

Consultancies 

Information on consultancies is available on our webpage http://www.rggs.qld.edu.au/about/downloads/ or on the 
Queensland Government Open Data website at  https://data.qld.gov.au 

Overseas Travel 

Information on overseas travel is available on our webpage http://www.rggs.qld.edu.au/about/downloads/ or on the 
Queensland Government Open Data website at https://data.qld.gov.au 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
FINANCIAL REPORT 31 DECEMBER 2019 

DOMICILE AND STATUS 

The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School was established in 1892. The school is a statutory body and is 
exempt from income tax from tile Commonwealth Government. T l1e school is domiciled in Rockhampton, 
Australia, with tile school's head office of operations and principal place of res idence being: 

155 Agnes Street, Rockhampton, Queensland 4700 

BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEMBERS 

Mr John (Ross) Johnson, BBus, LLB, GAICD, Board Chair (16 December 2011 - Current) 
Mr Noel Livingston, FREIQ, Deputy Chair (19 July 2007 - Current) 
Ms Anni Bastin-Byrne, Bbus, FCPA ( 2·1 August 2018 - Current) 
Miss Jennifer Luck, BEd , DipTch, GradDipTch (Lib), TEFL, (8 August 2013 - Current) 
Mrs Hilarie Dunn GCBus (26 May 2016 - Current) 
Mr Kenneth Murphy BAppSc (Rural Tech) (26 May 20'16 - Current) 
Mrs Gail Godwin-Smith GAICD (26 May 2016 - Current) 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

INCOME 

Tuition Fees 
Boarding Fees 
Donations 
Grant Income and Other Contributions 
Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Employee Expenses 
Supplies and Services 
Financial Expenses 
Lease Expenses 
Maintenance and Repairs 
Depreciation 

Total Expenses 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 

Items Not Recyclable to Operating1 Resu lt: 
Revaluation lncrement/(Decrement) on Buildings 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

NOTE 

2 

3 
4 
5 

6 
7 

8 

The accompanying notes form part o f these financial statements. 
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2019 2018 
$ $ 

2,868,652 2,506,128 
1,620,432 1,420,628 

44,786 43,136 
4,062,614 3,659,310 

589,079 711 ,029 

9,185,563 8,340,231 

5,404,563 5, 118, 177 
2,233,785 1,882,857 

151 ,974 179,368 
179,643 209,466 
444,227 424,602 
532,5'11 544,'103 

8,946,703 8,358,573 

238,860 (18,342) 

307,571 240,431 

307,571 240,431 

546,431 222,089 

2 

Page 130 



Appondices 

Financial Statements 

ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 2019 2018 
$ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 669,523 420,296 
Receivables 10 222,751 280,133 
Other Assets 11 158 876 149922 
Total Current Assets 1,051,150 850,351 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 30,638,153 30,495,745 
Intangible assets 13 66,903 64,846 
Total Non Current Assets 30, 705,057 30,560,591 

Total Assets 31,756,207 31,410,942 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Payables 14 427,761 482,048 
Short Term Borrowings 15 345,002 328,471 
Accrued Employee Benefits 16 608,661 388.348 
Total Current Liabilities 1,381 ,424 1.198,867 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Long Term Borrowings 15 2,205,108 2,543,863 
Accrued Employee Benefits 16 71.192 116, 156 
Total Non-current Liabilities 2,276,300 2,660,019 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,657,724 3,858,886 

NET ASSETS 28,098,485 27,552,056 

EQUITY 

Revaluation Surplus 18 14,762,326 14,454.755 
Retained Surpluses 13,336, 160 13,097,301 

TOTAL EQUITY 28,098,485 27,552,056 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 

3 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

Bal ance at 1 January 2018 
Other Comprehensive Income: 

Revaluation of Land 
Revaluation of Buildings 

Surplus 
Total Comprehensive Income: 

Total Balance at 31 December 2018 

Bal ance at 1 January 2019 
Other Comprehensive Income: 

Revaluation of Land 
Revaluation of Buildings 

Surplus/Deficit 
Total Comprehensive Income: 

Total Balance at 31 December 2019 

Asset Revaluation 
Surolus $ 

14,214,324 

. 
240,431 

-
240,431 

14,454,755 

14,454,755 

. 
307,571 

. 
307,571 

14,762,326 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
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Retained Total Equity 
Eaminas $ $ 

13,115,642 27,329,966 

. -

. 240,431 

(18,342) (18,342) 
(18,342) 222,089 

13,097.300 27,552.055 

13,097,300 27,552,055 

- . 
- 307,571 

238,860 238,860 
238,860 546,431 

13,336,160 28,098,485 
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Financial Statements 
ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 2019 2018 
$ $ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Inflows: 
Receipts from Students 4.522,740 3 ,857,027 
Receipts rrom Government 3,875,086 3 ,571 ,357 
Receipts from Capital Grants 110,000 
Receipts from Other Activities 609,513 930,049 
Interest Received 27,543 26.876 
GST Received from ATO 196,6 15 154,367 
GST Collected from Customers 351 ,748 334,052 

9,693,245 8.873,728 
Outflows : 
Payments to Employees (4,937,488) (4,791,628) 
Payments to Suppliers (3,083,595) (2,998,316) 
Interest and Other Cost of Finance (151,974) (168,523) 
GST Paid 10 Suppliers (303,702) (248,907) 
GST Remitted to ATO (251,558l !249,653) 

(8,728,316l !8.457,027) 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 19 964,929 416,701 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

Inflows: 
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 545 

Outflows: 
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (391 .365) (90,261 ) 
Payments for Software (2,658) (64,846) 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (393,478) (165,107) 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

Inflows: 
Proceeds from Borrowings 

Outflows: 
Repayment or Borrowings (322,225) (305,673) 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (322,225) (3051673) 

NET INCREASEl(DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD 249,226 (44,079) 

CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR 420,296 464,375 

CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 689.523 420,296 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements 
5 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR School 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

Objoctives an d Principal Activit ies 

The Schoof, eslablished in 1892, PfOvides for the educational needs of young women from Prepara10<y to Year 12. 
Boarding students are accepted from Year 6. 

NOTE 1 • SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Basis of Accounting 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance wlth Australian 
Accounting Standards • Reduced Oisclosv,e Requirements, Australian Accounting lntetpcetations and other 
authoritative pr0<1ounc<lments of lhe Australian Accounting Standards Board. In addrtion, the financial statements 
comply with Queenslan<I Treasury's Minimum Reporting Requirements and with Section 43 of the Finatlcial and 
Performartee f'vlanagement Standard 2019. The School is established under the Grarrimat Schools Act 2016 and 
is a State Government Statuto,y BOdy. The School is a not-for-profit entity for financial refl()rting purposes l.11der 
Australian Accounting Standards. The financial statements include 111e value of all income. expenses. assets and 
llabilitles and equity for the School as an individual entity. 

The finaf')Cial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the 
revaluation of selected non-current assets. financial assets and financial liabilities for wl'liell the fair value basis of 
accounting has been applied. 

The f()jlowing is a summa,y or the signincant accounting policies adapted by Rod(hampton Girts Grammar SCllool 
In the p,eparatlon of the financial ,eport. The accounting po4icies have been consistently applied unless otherwise 
stated. 

The financlal statements Include the value of all revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School . 

(b) New or Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 

The School has adopted aJI of the new or amended Aocounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB") that are mandato,y for the current reporting pefiod. 

The following two new standards <leal 'Mlh the treatment of revenue: 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: 
The School has adopted AASB 15 from 1 January 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive modei for 
revenue recognition. Toe core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognise to depict tl'le transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reRects the consideraUon to whiell the entity expects 
to be entlUed in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduced a new contract-based revenue 
recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an altocation of the lransaction price across 
performance obligations. This is desciibed further in the acc.ounling policies below. 

AASB 1058: Income of Not-for.Profit l!ntitles 
The SClloof has adopted AAS81058 from 1 Janua,y 2019. This Standard is applicable to transactions that do not 
ori3c from ooforccoblc controcl3 vlith cU3tomcro involving pcrfomionoc oblig otion::.. ThiG otonctord opplloo to 
capital grants that are received from time to time to acquire or construct capital assets. Revenue from capital 
grants will be deferred until aoql>sition or construction of lhe related asset. This Is coosistent with the School's 
prior Interpretation of AASB 1004. In addition. the School does not have any substantial capital grants at the date 
of this report. As a result. no majoi financial impact is expected as a resl.At of the implementation of this standard. 
As a result. there was oo major financial impact as a result of lhe implementation of this standard. 
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Financial Statements 

ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR School 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(b} Now o r Amended Accounting Standards and lntotpretatio ns adopted. continued 

The School has performed an assessment of the effect these two new standards have on their various revenue 
streams as follows: 

Tuition and Boarding Fees · Tuition and boarding fees fall wilhin the scope of AAS815 and are recognised over 
the period to IIAlich the fees relate. Rockhampton Gi~s Grammar School has a 31 O..cembe< balance date and as 
such, tuition and boarding fees In relatioo to a school year wou!d be recognised in that same financial year. 
\fl/here parents pay for fees in advance. these fees are deferred and brought In as il)OO(l'le to the school year to 
which they relate. 
Donations · The School receives donation inc<Jme in various forms. These Include voluntary donations wheltler 
foe general operations or for nominal&d purposes such as building funds, specific fundraising activities and 
bequests. There are no donations made In the current ,eporting periods that contain specific perlonnance 
obligations relating to the use of the funds. Therefore. AASB1058 appl;es and the income Is recognised 
immediately upon control of tile receipt. 

Grant lncomo - The School receives a variety of grants including mose from Slate. C<>mmonwealth and ocner 
local goverrvnent grants. Of an grants received. none are deemed to meet the sufficiently specific ctiterton tor 
performance obl!gations as prescribed within AAS815. i.e. Comrn-on",ealth and State funding carry condition$ 
only lhal the funds be spent by the school for an educational purpose during a calendar year. These granls are 
therefore. are accounted for under AASB1058 and Income recognised immediately upon receipt of the granl 
funds. AASB1058 contains specific requirements in respect of grants to construct or acquire a non-floanclal 
asset. colloquially known as capital grants. These grants require income to be recognised as or when the schoOI 
satisfies Its obligations to acquire"' construct the asset. 

Other lncomo -Other Income of the school ref ates to revenue from vatlous sources including rent. student 
changes for extra-CtJrrtcular actlvllies. instrumental music and tutoring fees. AJI have been assessed and 
determined to be revenue that reql.ires treatment under AASB15 and are ,eeognised over the period to YAlich the 
fees relate. A chaoge was required to the way lhe School recognised revenue from confirmation fees and \\Alere 
the fee is paid to ensure enrolment in the following yeat, Income Is defen'ed and included in for the first year of 
enrolment of the student. 

Impact of adoption 
The adoption of AA.SB 15 and AASB1058 has caused minimal change to the way in which Rockhampton Gitls 
Grammar recognfses revenue as generally speaking income received. relates in the majority of cases to a 
performance obligatiOO lhat is limited to the currenl calendar year. The only two reve,iue sources thal have 
required a change in treatment regarding recognition Is the confirmation Fees and in. future the treatment of Capital 
Grant income to which lhe project will extend beyond reporting periods. 

AASB 16: Leases 
The School has adoptedAAS816 from 01 January 2019. This standard replaced the existing AASS 117 Leases 
and related interpretations. AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model that eliminates the requirement 
for leases to be cfasslfled as operating or finance leases. 

The new standard ,equltes; 

• Recognition of a right.of-use asset and liability for all leases (exdudlng short term teases \'IAth less than 12 
months of tenure and leases ,elating to low-value assets) 
· Depreciation of right·of-use assets in line witl1 AASB 116: Prope~. Plant and Equipment in p<ofit or loss and 
unwinding or the llabUlty in prtncipaJ and inleresl components: · 
· Inclusion of variable lease payments that depend on an index or a 1ate In the initial measuremenl of these llabUlty 
using the ir¥.1ex or rate at the commenoemen1 date; 
'. Application of a practical expedient to permit a ressee to e4ect not to separate non-lease components and 
instead account f(J( all components as a lease 

Impact of adoption 
The adoption of AA.$816 has had no impact on the financial position for the current reporting perlOd. Throughout 
the 2018 and 2019 repor1ing pefiods the SchoOl's only leases in place are those that are for low cost assets and 
therefote. excluded from the treatment prescribed by the standard. 7 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR School 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(c) Revenue 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenoe is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company is expected to be 
entitled in exchange for the transferring services to the customer. For each contract with a customer. lhe School; 
ide1,tifles the contrac1 vJith the customer. identifies the performance obligations in the contract: determines the 
transaction pnce which taKes into account esUmates of variable consideration and the time value of money 
allocates the transaction ptice to the separate performance obWgations on the basis of the relative stand-alone 
selling price of each distinct good or service 10 be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each 
pel'formance obl.gation is satisfied in a maMer that depicts the transfer to the customer of the seivices promised. 

The SchoOl's revenue from the cenderlng of secvices, being tuition and boarding, is recognised when the 001rgauon 
to provide the related service is discharged. School Fees are charged annually, therefore au SchOol Fee revenue 
Is recogrised in the period that the invoice is raised. 

Revenue from enrotmen1 application fees •s recogntsed on receipt. Revenue from non.refundable confirmation 
fees are recognised on reve"'e on the first year of enrolment for the sludent that It relates. This Is new treatment 
and is required as a result of the new AAS615. 

OOfl/JtlorJ Revenue 
Bequests and Donations are recognised when received. Oonatioos received in kind (Other than cash) are 
recognised at fair value at the time or receipt. 

(d) Grants, Income and Other Contributions 

Grants, conttlbutlom and donations are non-reciprocal in nature so do not require any goods or services to be 
p,ovided In ,etum. Corresponding revenue is recognised in the year in 1Nhich the School obtains ocmtrOI over the 
g,ant/contributionldonation (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt) . 

\/1/he<e grant Income Is received 'Mlereby Rockhampton Girts Grammar School incurs an obligation to deliver 
economic value directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transac1ion and the gcant ,e.venue is 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liabilily until the service has been delivered to the 
contributor. othelWise the grant is recognised as a non-reciprocal contribution. If conditions are auache<I to ine 
giant 'Mlich must be satisfied before the School is eligible to recef\le the grant, the recognition of the grant as 
revenue will be deferred until those oonditions are satisfied. Otherwise. !he C()(llributlon is ,eoognised as income 
on receipt. 

(o) Cash Assets 

Cash assets include all cash and cheques receipted txil no1 banked at !he end of ll>e reporting penod as well as 
deposits at call with rlna.ncial Institutions. and bank overdrafts. 

(ij Receivables 

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due at the time of invoicing less any allowance fot impairment as 
the amounls are due for settlement upon the issue of the invoice. The coltectabilrty of receivables Is assessed 
annually with provision being made for impainnent based on an expected cre<llt losses model as is required by the 
new AASB 9. This approach requires estimation of expected etedlt losses for each receivable regardless of 
whethec the,e Is evidence of impairment at balance date. Mana.gement makes this assessment based on the 
individual characteristics of each debtor and where possible. external economic factors that may also impact the 
future capacity of UlOse debtors 10 pay. The School measures the Impairment alioWaJlce based on life time 
expected losses. All known bad debts ,vere wntteo off as at 31 December 2019. 

Fees are due and payable on lhe first day or each term. FO< example. fees for Term 1 are due on the first day of 
Term 1. 

Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual ope<ating activities of the School and are 
recognised al their assessed values. Terms are a maximum ol 30 days. No interest is charge<l and no security Is 
obtained. 
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Financial Statements 
ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR School 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(g) Acquisitions of Assets 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical and intangible asset acquisitions. Cost Is 
determined as the value given as consideration plus cos1s incidental to the acquisition. including all other costs 
incurred In getting the assets reacfy for use, including architects' fees and engineering design fees. However. any 
training costs are expensed as incurred. 
Assels acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value at date of acquisition in 
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and £qvipment. 

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Items or property, plant and equipment with a cos! or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds 
are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Buildings and Infrastructure 
Land 
Plant and Equipment 

$10.000 
$1 . 
$5,000 

llems with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquls!Uon. 

(I) Revaluallons of Non-Current Physical and Intangible Assets 

Land, buildings, infrastructure, major plant and equipment and heritage and cultural assets are measured at fair 
value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and Queensland Treasury's Minimum Non
Cuffent Asset Accounting Policies for the Queensland Public Sector. 

Non-current physical assets were revalued as a Desktop Valuation by Taylor Byrne Valuers in 2019. A full 
valuaUon was carried out In 2018. 

The comprehensive valuation process in 2018 performed by Taylor Byrne Valuers in for land included physical 
Inspections and reference to market transactions for local sales of land with similar characteristics. 
The comprehensive valuation process in 2018 performed by Taylor Byrne Valuers for buildings included phySica1 
inspections and the identification of the current condition of the asset and its expected remaining useful life. 
The valuation of residential buildings was based on publicly available data on sales of similar properties in lhe 
region. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value a're comprehensively revau ed at least once every three years. 
Interim valuations. using appropriate indices or desktop valuations. are performed on an am ual basis to determine 
where there has been material variation in the market. 

Any revaluation increment arising on tile revaluation of an asset Is credited 10 the asset revaluation surplus of 1he 
appropriate asset, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the asset p,eviousiy recognised as 
an e.xpense. A decrease In the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense. to the extent It exceeds 
the balance. if any, in the revaluation surplus relaling to that asset class. 

On revaluallon, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the 
asset and any change In the estimate of remaining useful life. 

U) Amortisation and Depreciation Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land is not depreciated as ii has an unlimited useful life. 

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a stralght~lne basis so as to allocate lhe net cost or revalued 
amount of each asse1, less its esUmated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the School. 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR School 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

0) Amortisation and Depreciation Proporty, Plant and Equipment 
Assets under construction (work-in-progress) are nol depreciated until they are reacly for use. 

Where assets have separately lclentifiable components that are subject to regular replacement. these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

For each Class of depreciable asset the following depreciation and amortisation rates are used: 

Class 
Buildings 
Plant and Equipment 

Rate (%) 
1 -5 
5 - 33 

0) Amortisation and Depreciation Property, Plant and Equipment. continued 

Impairment 
As a not-for-prom entity, certain property. plant and equipment of the School Is held for the continuing use of tts 
service capacity and not for the generation of cash flOW$. Such assets are typically specialised In nature. In 
accordance with the AASB 136, wnere such assets measU1ed at fair value under AASB13. lha:t fair value (v.ith no 
adjustment for disposal costs} is effectively deemed to be the recoverable amount. Consequently, MSB 136 does 
not apply to such assets unless they are measured at cost. 

For other non-specialised property, plant ancl equipment measured at fair value, where indicators of impairment 
exist. the only difference between !he asset's fair value and its fair value less costs of disposal Is the incremental 
costs attributable to the disposal of the asset. Consequenijy, 1he fair value of the asset determined under AASB 13 
will materially approximate its recoverable amount where the disposal costs attributable to the asset are negligible. 
Alter the revaluation requirements of AASB 13 are first applied to these assets, applicable disposal costs are 
assessed and, In lhe circumstances where such costs are not negligible. adjustments to the recoverable amount 
are made in acxordance with AASB 136. 

{k) Loascs 

Operating leases held by the School are currenUy treated using the operating cost method. Lease payments are 
charged as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. All current leases helcl by the School meet the 
definition within AASB16 Leases of low-value assets and thoo are excluded from lhe prescribed lreatment within 
the new standard. As a result of this exclusion. lease payments continue to be expenses as incurred. 

(I) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and th.e invoice, and are measured 
at the agreed purchase/contract price. gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are 
unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms or sooner. 

(m) Long.term Borrowings 

Interest bearing liabilities are recognised at face value as lhe amount contractually owing. 

(n) Employ•• Bonofits 

Wages, Salaries, Recreation Leav~. Sick Leave, ancf Long SeNice Leave 

Wages. salaries. recreation leave and long service leave due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised In the 
Statement of Financial Position at the remm eralion rates expecte<l 10 apply at the lime of se1t1emen1 and include 
related on-costs such as Work Cover premil.llls and employer superannuation contributions. 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(n) Emptoyoo Benefits (continued) 
For unpaid entitlements eicpected to be paid within 12 months, or whare the Schoot does not lla11e an 
unconditional right to defer settlement to beyond 12 monlllS after the repoltlng date, the en1ittements are 
recognised as current liabilitieS at their undiscounted values. Entitlements not due to be paid "411111'1 12 months are 
Classffied as norH:unent llabihlles and recognised at their present value. calculated using yields on F"tXed Rate 
Commonwealth G-Ovemment bonds or Similar matunty. after projectJng ll1e remunerallon rates e><pected to apply at 
the time of hkely settlement. 

Prior history Indicates that on average, sicl< leave taken eaeh reporting period is less than the e111UUement accrued. 
This Is eic:peaed to continue In future periods. Accordngly, It Is unlikl!ty that exisllng accumulated anlltlements will 
be used by employees and no liability !or unused aiok leave entiUements is recogrised 

As sick leave is non-vesling, an expense Is recognised for this leave as It Is taken. 

Supmnnue'*1n 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School provides employees with the opportl.lllty to choose their Superannuation 
Fund The vast majonty of employees are members of either tho NGS Super or QSuper. Contributions a.re 
eXl)ensed In uie perio<l In wlllch they are paid or payable. The School's ot>r,gation is fimitad to its colllributlons to 
these funds. 

Therefore, no tlablllty Is recognised foi accruing superannuat,on benefits In lliese financtal statements except for 
the amount that is owing lor December 2019 as this is not due for payment until the following month 

Roclchampton Gins Grammar School had 51 .5 full time equivalent employees at 31 December 2019 (54 11 FTE al 
31 December 2018). 

(o) Financing/Borrowing Costs 

Finance costs are recognised as an expense In U1e period In which they are Incurred. 

Finance costs include Interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borro,..,;ngs. 

(p) tnsuranco 

'Miiis Towers Watson Ltd insure the Schoors Non-Current Physical Assets. Student, Staff and Volunteer Accident 
Protection. Travel lnS<Kance, Director and Officer's Supj)lementary Legal Expenses. Statutory liability and 
Educato(s Liability and Forgery. In addition, the School pays prem'u!T1$ to Wor1\ Cover Queensland In respect or 
its obligations for employee compensation and student work experience placements. Insurance is expensed in the 
period in which it relates. 

(q) Taxation 

The School is a state body as oeflned under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempt from 
Commonwealth taxation except ror Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). FBT and GST 
are the only taxes acc<>unted for by the School. 

Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of OST. GST credits 
receivable from. and GST payable to. the ATO at reporting date are separately recognised in Payables (Note 14). 

(r) Issuance of Financial Statements 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chairman or the Board of Trustees or the Rockhampton 
Girts Grammar School and the Business Manager at the date of signing the Management Certificate as round on 
page 27. 11 
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(s) The Board has Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

Management evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on 1historical 
kn<mledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events 
and are based on current trends a.nd economic data. obtained both extecnally and within the School. 

Key Estlmates - Impairment and Fair Values 

The School assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the School that may 
lead to Impairment of assets. Where an lmpalnnent trigger exists. the recoverable amount of the asset is 
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key 
estimates. An impairment Charge was recognised for the year ended 31 December 20t 9 on two of the School's 
buildings. The first being the total costs capitalised on the applications and planning for a new Prep Building that 
will no longer go ahead and the write down of another building that is expected to be demoLished ..,;thin the next 
five years. 

The Independent valuation of non~urrent assets at reporting date requires a number of estimations and 
judgments. Referto note 1 (i). 

Provision for Doubtful Debtors 

In calculaling the Scnool's provision for doubtful debts, the School assesses each debtor balance on a case by 
case basis. Non-<:<Jrrent debtors are included when a payment has not been received for a significant period and 
no payment arrangement Ms been secured. These are placed into !he hands of a collection a9ency. Current 
debtors are assessed and included in part or in full based on a risk assessment of the collectability of the debt. 

(t) Rounding and Comparatives 

Amounts included in the financial statements have been rovnded to the nearest dollar. Comparative information 
has been restated wllere necessary to be consistent with disclosures In the current reporting period. Functional 
and presentation currency is Australian dollars. 

(u) New and Revised Accounting Standards for Application In Future Periods 

The School did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2019. The School is 1101 permitted lo 
P..Arly ~C'fn(')I A nP.IN or AmAncfAd Ar.r.ountlno ~1AndAtd ;:,hP.ad nf thA ~pAciflP.<'I r.nmmAnr.A,mP.nt <1;:ih~ un!P..s:~ A()(lrnval 
Is obtained from Queensland Treasury. Consequently. the School has not applied any Australia11 accounting 
standards and Interpretations that have been Issued but are not yet effective. The School applie·s standards and 
Interpretations In accordance with their respective commencement dates. 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENH 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 2 • TUITION FEES 
Tuition Fees 
Infrastructure Levy 
ICT Levy 

NOTE 3 • DONATIONS INCOME 
Donations for Capital Purposes 
Scholarship 
General 

NOTE 4 • GRANT INCOME 
State Recurrent Grant 
State Grant O ther 
State Grant • Agricultre 
State Capital Grant 
State Endowment Grant 
Chaplaincy Grant (C'Wealth} 
Commonwealth Recurrent Grants 
Commonwealth Other Grants 

NOTE 5 • OTHER INCOME 
OSHC Fees 
Rent Received 
Interest Received 
Studen t Charges 
Application and Enrolment Fees 
Pro fiU(Loss} Sale o f Assets 
Instrumental Music 
In-house Professional Development 
Sundry 

ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL Annual Report 

2019 2018 
$ $ 

2.623,085 2.277,075 
119,782 111, 786 
125,785 117,267 

2,868,652 2,506,128 

36,500 39,401 
6,110 3,735 
2,176 

44,786 43,136 

642, 129 624,054 
57,248 76,992 

5,000 
110,000 

8,500 17,000 
20.280 20.000 

3,200.957 2,901,861 
23.500 14.403 

4,062,614 3,659,310 

99,592 88,330 
67.632 251,729 
27,543 26,875 

240,249 213,189 
12,475 32,686 
(8.197) (1} 

60,360 47,962 
35,600 

89,425 14,659 
589,079 711,029 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT~ 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 6 • EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
Wages and Salaries 
Employer Superannuaiion Contribuiions 
Workers Compensation Premium 
Long Service Leave Expense 
Annual Leave Expense 
Other 

NOTE 7 • SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 
Supplies and services includes the following key functional areas 
(a} Boarding 
Catering 
Kitchen Expenses 
Security 
Laundry COl'ltl'aet 
Other 

(b) Professional Fees 
Auditor's Remuneration • QAO audit of financial statements 
Consultancy Fees 
Other Professional Fees 

2019 2018 
$ s 

4,608,671 4,550,061 
527,651 520,792 

28,711 27,848 
82,218 5,332 
93, 131 (4,966) 
64,182 19, 110 

5,404,563 s ,118,1n 

4 18,271 442, 145 
2 ,212 1,761 

21,364 18,096 
24,741 21 ,276 
19,319 32,266 

485,907 515 544 

32,000 25,500 
18,710 17,350 
11 ,393 8,196 
62,103 51,046 

No other fees have been paid lo auditors other than that as disclosed above in Note 7(b). Total audit fees 
quoted by the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2019 Financial Statements are $32,000 (2018; $25.500). 

(c) Administrative 
Printing and Stationery 
Light and Power 
Telephone and Postage 
Insurance 
Rates 
Bad and Doubtful Debts Expense 
Cleaning 
Computer Expenses 
Advertising & Promotional 
Other 
Extraordinary Expenses 
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11 ,382 
126,802 

71,410 
68,106 

120,742 
69,727 

197, 123 
128,226 

72,378 
143,271 
55,791 

1,064,959 
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8,976 
150,462 

86,508 
60,183 

116,953 
9,329 

191,465 
80.153 
96.946 

128.456 

929,431 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENH 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

(d) Other Education Expenses 
Subject Expenses 
OSHC Expenses 
Speech Night 
Scholarship Fund Expense Payments 
Library Expenses 
Magazine Expenses 
School Pertormances 
School Camp Expense 
Student Activity Expenses 
Other 

(e) Motor Vehicle Expenses 
Motor Vehicle Expenses 
M V Expenses · Buses 

Total Supplies and Services 

NOTE 8 • DEPRECIATION 
Buildings and Groun:I Improvements 
Plant and Equipment 
F umiture and Fittings 

NOTE 9 • CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
General Fund (NAB) 
Floats 
Deposits at Call (OTC Working Capital Accounts) 
Building Fund 
Scholarship Fund 

2019 
$ 

52,389 
18.408 
17,925 
2,655 
7,626 
9,300 
6,121 

60,287 
248,038 
144,250 
567,000 

2,244 
51,572 
53,816 

2,233,785 

346,750 
152,115 

33,647 
532,511 

278,879 
800 

251,080 
117,219 

21,545 
669,523 

All accounts with the exceptions of the Building Fund and Scholarship Fund do not hold any restrictions 
governing •how or where the money is spent. The Building Fund and Scholarship Fund are restricted for use 
In respect of the following purposes: 

Building Fund - is a Deductible Gift Recipient established to raise money for school building projects 
Scholarship Fund - is a Deductible Gift Recipient established to provide scholarships from donations. 

NOTE 10 - RECEIVABLES 
Student Fees 
OSHC Fees 
Commercial Fees 
Less Allowance for lmpainnent 
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377,088 
13,301 
13, 173 

('180,811 ) 
222,751 
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2018 
s 

43.443 
17.735 
13.373 

1, 155 
8,771 

10,925 
736 

50,004 
67,829 

124.859 
338,830 

3,318 
44,689 
48,007 

1,882,857 

323,115 
182,682 
38,306 

544, 103 

177,587 
800 

6,473 
21 8,825 

16,611 
420,296 

394,048 
7,926 

15,746 
(137,587) 
280,133 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss for trade and other debtors 
Balance at 1 January 
Amounts written off during the year 
lncrease/(decrease) in allowance 
Balance at 31 December 

NOTE 11 - OTHER ASSETS 
Prepayments 
Accrued Income 

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Land (Deed of Grant) 
Oval Sporting Facilities - at independent valuation 
Land - at independent valuation 
Total Land 

Buildings and Improvements 
Paterson (Heritage Listed) - at independent valuation 
Other Buildings - at independent valuation 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Building Improvements under construction at cost (WIP) 
Total Buildings and Improvements 

Total Land and Buildings 

Interest in Rowing Shed • 
Al cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Total Interest in Rowing Shed 

2019 
$ 

(137,587) 
25,914 

(t;\l ,137) 
(180,811) 

158,083 
793 

158,876 

374.263 
3,525,737 
3,900,000 

13,480,000 
28,268,000 

(16, 162,403) 
25,585,597 

32,617 
25,618,214 

29,518,214 

2018 
s 

(154,687) 
26,429 
(\l,3;/\l) 

(137,587) 

143,297 
6,625 

149,922 

374,263 
3,525,737 
3,900,000 

13,085,000 
27,746,900 

(15,213,100) 
25,618,800 

46,000 
25,664,800 

29,564,800 

25.830 
(6,996) 
18,834 

• a change in accounting policy throughout 2019 has has caused a re-dassification of [he rowing shed lease to a 
general prepayment rather than a separate asset dass. 

Plant and Equipment 
At cost 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Plant and Equipment 

Total Property Plant and Equipment 
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(2, 292, 1 77) 
1.119,939 

30,638,153 
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3,089,132 
(2,1n.022) 

912,110 

30,495,745 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENH 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

Note 12 • PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

As at 19 November 2019, RGGS land and buildings were revalued by Taylor Byrne, registered Valuers. This was a 
desktop valuation and was to ascertain any change in values to the fair value for the land and buildings. The valuation of 
the buildings is based on depreciated value, and there was revaluation increments recorded for most of the school's 
buildings. The valuer's assessment of the land value was that there was no change :and that the value of $3,900,000 
remains. 

Land with a total value of $3,900,000 is subject to a Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT). Tile land is retained by the Crown, 
however, the economic benefits o,f this land accrue to Rockhampton Girls Grammar School and the land is administered 
by the Rockhampton Girls Grammar Scheat. The land cannot be used for any purpose other than education. The value 
has been determined after consideration of the location of the land, and discounting 
due to the restrictive Deed of Grant in Trust. 

As per AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment, revaluation increments are credited directly to the Asset 
Revaluation Surplus except to the extent that the increment reverses a revaluation deorease of the same class 
of assets previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Revaluation decrements are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent of any credit balance existing in 
the Asset Revaluation Surplus in respect of that class of assets, in which case the decrement is debited 
directly to equity. 

An investment property to the value of $145,000 was revalued to form part of the Buildings and Improvements 
Asset Class. This particular asset has historically been treated as a separate asset class 'Investment Property'. 
This re-classification was deemed necessary to correctly reflect the cyrrent yse of the asset by the School. 
The property is held for purposes other than investment as it is used as an accommodation option for employees, 
portion of the property is used for storage of school assets and the property is unable to be sold as it is on the 
title of the property that is designed DOGIT. 
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NOTE 12 • PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 
$ $ $ $ $ 

Buildings and 
Improvements at Buildings Under Plant & Equipment at 

Land Valuation Construction Cost Total 

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 3,900,000 25,618,801 46,000 930,944 30,495,744 

Acquisitions 6,513 6,690 381,102 394,305 

Disposals (24,617) (24,617) 

Depreciation (347,288) (187,562) (534,850) 

Revaluation 307,571 307,571 

Transfers (20,073) 20,073 0 

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 3,900.000 25,585,597 32.617 1.119,939 30,638,153 

Building:; Under Plant & Equipment <1t 
Land Buildings at Valuation Construction Cost Total 

carrvil'l!l amount at 1 January 2018 3,900,000 25,567,300 127,664 1,1 14.194 30,709,158 

Acquisitions 1,592 '16,000 '10,969 88,561 

OispoScllS ( 1) (1 ) 

Depreciation (316,186) (224,218) (540,404) 

Revaluation 363,628 (125, 197) 238,431 

Transfers 2,467 (2,467) 

C;mying amount at 31 December 2018 3,900,000 25.618,801 46.000 930,944 30.495 .. 745 
18 
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2019 
s 

NOTE 13 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE PROPERTY 

Software Licenses 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Sofllware 

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 
ACQuisitio:ns • purchased 
Disposals 
Amortisation expense 
Impairment losses recognised 
Carrying amount at 31 December 

Accounting Policy 

67,504 
(601) 

66,903 

64,846 
2,658 

(601) 

66,903 

In-house developed software is a finite lffe intangible assets and capitalied on the basis of actual costs 
incurred to purchase, develop and install the related software. 

Disclosure • Significant Intangibles 

2018 
$ 

64,846 

64,846 

64,846 

64,846 

One of the two software assets capitalised as Intangible Assets is still under development at 31 December 2019 and! 
will be depreciated once lully installed and ready for use. 

NOTE 14 -PAYABLES 
Trade Creditors 
Enrolmen1 Deposits 
Deferred Confirmation Fee 
Revenue Received in Advance 
GST Payalile/(Relundable) 
Accrued Expenses 
Prepaid Income 

NOTE 15. BORROWINGS 
Current 
OTC l oans 

Non Current 
OTC l oans 

140,896 
180,985 

11,400 

(31,525) 
126,005 

427,761 

345,002 
345,002 

2,205, 108 
2,205,108 

All borrowings are in $A denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost with interest being 
expensed as it accrues. No interest has been capitalised during the current or comparative reporting 
period. 

In re!aton to the debenture loan, the school had been paying interest only in quarte~y instalments at the 
rate 015.553% since 1 October 2006. Ouarte~ principal repayments commenced in the March 2012 

126,046 
173,734 

46,528 
(24,627) 
135,195 

25,172 
482,048 

328,471 
328,471 

2,543,863 
2,543,863 

quarter. 19 
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NOTE 15 - BORROWINGS (Cont) 
The marl<el value of the School's borrowings at 31 December 2019, as notified by the Queensland 
Treasury Corporation was $2,923,507.10 (2018 $3,211,252). This represents the value of the debt if the School 
repaid tt in full at balance date. 

As tt is the intention of the School to hold tts borrowings for their full term, no adjustment provision is made in these 
accounts. 

Unused finance facil ities 
The School has an operating lease credtt facility of $600,000, of which $473,894 unused as at 31 
December 2019. 

The School has an overdraft faciltty with OTC of $1,000,000, of which s 1,ooo.ooo is unused as at 31 
December 2019. 

2019 
s 

NOTE 16 - ACCRU ED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Current 
Annual Leave 160,283 
Long Service Leave 448,378 

608,661 

Non-Current 
Long Service Leave 71, 192 

71 ,192 

Total Employee Benefits 679,853 

Movement in Accrued Employee Benefit s: 
Opening balance at beginning of year 504,504 
Additional provision raised 340,755 
Amounts used (165,405) 
Balance at end of year 679,853 

A orovision has been made for emoloyees beneftts relatino to annual leave and Iona service leave for 
employees. In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the 
probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data. 

2018 
$ 

67, 153 
321,195 
388,348 

116,156 
116,156 

504,504 

573,715 
158,908 

(228, 120) 
504,504 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO ANO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN1'$ 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 17 • KEY EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION 

The Sehool has assessed lhe key executive mana~ement personnel positions In conteld of the School be:ng constituted uMer 
the Grammar Scnoo/s Act 2016 Details of executive management personrie1 positions, responsib,lltiea, appointment date and 
remuneralloo are detaded below. Further ,ntormation on these positions can be b.Jnd in the body of 1he Annual Report Under 
the seccion relabng to Governance 

Current Inc umbents 

Contract 
Posi tion Responsibil it ies cla$$llication Dato appointed 

and appointment to position 
authority 

8ected position 8/8/2013 

Elecood Trustee through roll of 
eledO<S and 5126/2016 

Elected Trustee appointed by lhe 
Govemorin 

$1'2612016 Elected Trustee Council 
Govemmenl 

To supervise. maintain and cornrol the coodu<:t or the School. To 7/1912007 
Appointed Trustee 

make rules with mgards to lhe management and control of the 
Government 

School. 8/21/2018 
Appointed Trustee 

Appoin:e<I by the Government 11111/2010 • 
Appo,nted Trustee Governor in 

2110812018 
Government Council 

12116/2011 
IAppo.i>ted Trustee 
Government Sl26/2016 
Al)po,nted Trustee 
Principal The Prlnopal rs responsible for the implemenlatlon of plans and 5 year contract 1/01/2016 • 

strategies as approved by the Board of Trusiee$ {ending 21/01/2019 
31/12/2020) 

Princl?al (Aeling) Temporary 21.01.19 • 
contract 3110.19 

Pnnclpal (Acting) Temporary 31.10.19 • 
contract 13.12.19 

Business 3 year contract 1/2512017 
Ma11ager/Secretary tc The Secretary/Business Manager supports the Principal ,n (ending 
the Board of implementalioo of plans and strategies as delegated by the Board 25/01/2020) 
Trustees of Trustees. 

Deputy Principal The DePlltY Principal supports the PriflcipaJ in the implementation 3 year con1ract 1101/2017 • 
of plans and strategies as delegated oy Ille Pr incial in the areas (ending 31/1012019 
of curriculum, students and operations. 31/1212019) 

Deputy Principal Temporary 21/01/2019 • 
(Acting) contract :J 1110/2019 

The remunera~on and other terms of employment for the key executive management per,sonnel are specified in employment 
contracts. 

For the 2018 and 2019 ye3r, remuneration of key exec,,,tive management personnel inaeases were based on performance 
assessments. The percentage increases are tied to the achievement of pre-determined lndMdual perfonnanee targets. 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 
NOTE 17 • KEY EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 

Remuneration packages for key e)(ecutive management personnel compris.e the foltowing components:. 

Short term employee benefits which include: 

1) Base - conSlsbng of base salary, allowances and leave entitlements paid and p,ovided for the enare year or for that pa~ of 
the year dunng wl'lich the employee occupied the specified position. Amounts disclosed equal the amour,t expensed In the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

2) Non-monetary benefits · consisting of provision al remission for Schoel lees together with fringe benefits tax applicable to 
the benefit. 

Long term employee booefits include long service 1eave accrued. 
Post employment benefits indude superannuation contnbut1ons. 

Redundancy payments are not p rovided for ,.,;thin Individual contracts of employme<1t. Ccntracts of employment provide only 
tor notice periods or payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason for termination. 

No performance bonuses or share-based payments were paid. 

2018 
Long Term Post Termination 

Short Term Employee Benefits Employoo Employee 
Benefits 

Description Benelils Benefits 

Base$ 
Non-Monetary 

$ $ $ 
Benefits$ 

Prillcipal 203.973 9.550 1.465 24,323 
Business 
Manager/Secratary to 

108,232 . 499 14,334 the Board of 
Trustees 
Deputy Principal 122,209 856 16.256 

2019 
' 

Long Term Post 
Termination 

Short Term Employee Benefits Employee Employee 
Benefits 

Description Benefits Benefits 

Base$ 
Non-Monetary s $ $ 

Boneflts $ 
Principal (01.01. 19 -

24,072 2.929 
19.04.19) 1 

Principal (Aeling) 
(21 .01 . t 9 - 31.10.19) 141,995 16,974 , 
Princ;ipal (Actin.g) 
(31 .10. t9 - 13.12.19) 36,790 3,491 

• 
Business 
Manager/Secretary to 

111.514 14,749 
the Board of 
Trustees 
Deputy Principal 
(Acting) 21 O 1 19 - 99, 133 5,836 9,418 
31.10.19) 3 

.. 
(1) The Pnnc,pal was on a penod o( leave from 20.01. 19. 19.04.19 and tes191\Cd from ttle pc>sibon effective 19.04, 19 

(2) Th& existing Deputy Principal assumed the role of Acting Princil)31 from 2\.01. 19 · 31. 10.19 upon resignation. 

(3) An Aeling Deputy Principat was aplX)inted 21.01;19 · 3 1 10.19 

(4) The prior Acting Deputy Principal was appointed Acting Ptlncipal for the period 31.10.19 • 13.12.19} 

None of the Council membets teeeive any remunetation for their toles. 
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Total 
Rem uneralion 

$ 

239.311 

123.065 

t39.321 

Total 
Remuneration 

$ 

27,336 

158,970 

40,280 

126,262 

114,386 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 18 ·ASSET REVALUATION SURPLUS BY ASSET CLASS 

$ $ 
Land Buildings 

Balance 1 January 2019 3,863,696 9,050,949 
Revaluation Increments 339,683 
Revaluation (Decrements) (344) 
Balance 31 December 2019 3,863,696 9,390,288 

Land Buildings 

Balance 1 January 2018 3,863,696 8,871,050 
Revaluation Increments 529,343 
Revaluation Decrements !349,444) 
Balance 31 December 2018 3,863,696 9,050,949 

NOTE 19 • STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS 

$ 
Heritage Listed 

Buildings 

1,540, 110 
300 

!32,068) 
1,508,342 

Heritage Listed 
Buildings 

1,479,577 
62,203 
(1,670) 

1,540, 110 

2019 
$ 

Reconcil iation of net cash from operating activities to net result for the period: 

Operating ( deficit) I surplus 

Depreciation 
Bad debts 
Loss I (gain) on disposal of non-current assets 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 
Increase/( decrease) in payables 
lncrease/{decrease) in employee benefits 

ROCKHA.MP TON GIRLS GRAMIW\R SCHOOL Annual Report 

238,860 

532,51 1 
69,727 

8,197 

(6,516) 
1,088 

(54,288) 
175,349 
964,929 
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$ 
Total 

14,454,755 
339,983 
(32,412) 

14,762,326 

Total 

14,214,323 
591,546 

!351 ,1 14) 
14,454,755 

2018 
$ 

(18,342) 

544,103 
9,329 

(2,991) 
(22 ,457) 
(93,306) 

365 
416 701 

23 



Appendices 

Financial Statements 
ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 20 · COMMITMENTS 

(a) Lease commitments 

At 31 December the School had the following operating lease commitments exclusive of GST: 

within one year 
one to five years 

2019 
s 

140,695 
104,302 
244,997 

2018 
$ 

149,710 
172.353 
322,063 

Leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access to office equipment and vehides. Lease 
payments are fixed. No leases contain restrictions on financing or other leasing activities. Some leases 
have renewal Of purchase options. 

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments 

As at 31 December 2019, the School had capital commitments of $0 

NOTE 21 · RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Entities with related party transactions 

~ 
Capricorn Educational Resources 

Transactions with related parties 

Board Member 
Jennifer Luck 

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more Favourable 
available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

Tuition expenses · Capricorn Educational Resources 

2019 
s 
46,478 

2018 
$ 
11.159 

Rockhampton Girls Grammar School purchases goods in the form of teaching resources and school 
stationary supplies From Capricorn Educational Resources of which Jennifer Luck held a 50% partnership 
interest in the enti ty up until June 2019 when the business was sold. 

NOTE 22 • CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Commonwealth and State Government Capital Grants 

Pursuant to the conditions attached to Commonwealth and State Government capital grants, the school is 
oontingently liable to repay, based on a formula, all or part of the grants received if the project to which 
the funds are appfied ceases to be used for the purpose approved or is sold or otherwise disposed of 
within 20 years of completion of the project. 

The Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Girts Grammar School ,s of the opinion that the school will 
oonbnue m its current capacity and therefore any llablllty IS unlikely to materialise. 24 
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ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 

NOTE 23 • CONTINGENT ASSETS 

As a result of negotiations or a supplier contract, the School received dining hall refurbishments to the 
value of $156,000 during the 2016 year. These are not included in the property. plant and equipment 
disclosed in Note 12 as control does not pass to the School until expiration of the contract on 29 
December 2020. Should the contract be terminated prior to its expiration. the School will be required lo 
purchase the capital improvements at their remaining wrilten down value. 

A contingent asset exists at reporting date as the result or an outstanding insurance claim. The value of 
the asset that is contingent on a successful outcome is $37,375 

NOTE 24 • EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DATE 

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since 31 December 2019 that have significantly affected 
or may significantly affect the operations, results or state of affairs of the School. 

ROCKHAMPTON GIRLS GRAMMAR SCHOOL Annual Report Page 153 

25 



Appendices 

Financial Statements 

Certificate of the Board of Truste-es of the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Section 62(1) of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), Section 42 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019, 
Austra lian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Regulations 2013 and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with Section 62(1 )(b) of the Act we certify 
that in our opinion: 

a) the prescribed re,quirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with in all 
material respects: and 

b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed 
accounting standards, of the transactions of the Board of Trustees of The Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and of the financial position of the School at the end of that year; 
and 

We, acknowledge responsibility under Section 8 and Section 15 of the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2019 for the establishment and maintenance, in all material respects, of an appropriate and effective 
system of internal controls and risk management processes with respe-ct to financial reporting throughout the 
reporting period. 

In accordance with Section 60.15 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Regulations 2013, we certify that, 
in our opinion: 

i) There are reasonable grounds to believe the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they 
become due and payable; and 

ii) The financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit 
Commission Act. 

Clair Applewaite 
Business Manager 
B.Acc. CA 
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John Ross Johnson 
Chairman 
8.Bus, LLB, GAICD 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of the Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

Report on the audit of the financial report 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of The Board of Trustees of the 
Rockhampton Girls Grammar School. 

In my opinion, the financial report: 

a) gives a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 31 December 2019, and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended 

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Peliormance 
Management Standard 20'19, the Australian Cha1jties and Not-for-profits Commission Act 
2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013 and 
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements 

The financial report comprises the statement of f inancial position as at 31 December 2019, 
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including summaries of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management 
certificate. 

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-Genera/ of Queensland Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auclitor's Responsibilities for tile Audit of the 
Financial Report section of my report. 

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the 
financial report in Australia. I have also fulfi lled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards. 

·I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Responsibilities of the entity for the financial report 

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2019, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 
2013 and Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, and for 
such internal control as the Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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The Board is also responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the entity or to otherwise cease 
operations. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the entity. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the entity's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. I base my conclusions 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit 
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In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 
31 December 2019: 

a) I received all the information and explanations I required. 

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping 
of accounts were complied with in all material respects. 

Melissa Fletcher 
as delegate of the Auditor-General 
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Glossary of Terms 
AASB  Australian Accounting Standards Board 

ABSA  Australian Boarding Schools Association 

ACER  Australian Council of Educational Research 

AICD  Australian Institute of Company Directors 

AITSL  Australian Institute for Teaching and School Leadership 

ATAR  Australian Tertiary Admission Rank 

COPS  Community of Practice 

DOGIT  Deed of Grant in Trust 

EBIDA  Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation and Amortization 

FTE  Full Time Equivalent 

Girls Grammar  Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

GPA  Grade Point Average 

ICAS  International Competitions and Assessments for Schools 

ICT  Information Communication Technology 

IDT  Internal Diagnostic Tool 

ISSN  International Standard Serial Number 

ISQ  Independent Schools Queensland 

IT  Information Technology 

KPI  Key Performance Indicators 

LOTE  Language Other Than English 

NAPLAN  National Assessment Program in Literacy and Numeracy 

NMS  National Minimum Standard 

NSSAB  Non-State Schools Accreditation Board 

OP  Overall Position 

OSHC  Out of School Hours Care 

Pat M & Pat R  Pat Math and Pat Reading 

PD  Professional Development 

P&F  Parents & Friends Association 

QAO  Queensland Audit Office 

QCAA  Queensland Curriculum and Assessment Authority 

QCE  Queensland Certificate of Education 

QCS  Queensland Core Skills 
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QISSN  Queensland Independent Secondary Schools Netball 

QMEA  Queensland Minerals and Energy Academy 

QTAC  Queensland Tertiary Admissions Centre 

RGGS  Rockhampton Girls Grammar School 

SMART  Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Realistic and Timely 

STEAM  Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Mathematics 

SWST  Single Word Spelling Test 

TASS  The Alpha School System 

WHS  Workplace Health & Safety 

WHSO  Workplace Health & Safety Officer 
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Compliance Checklist 

Summary of requirement Basis for requirement 
Annual report 

reference 

Letter of 
compliance 

 A letter of compliance from the accountable
officer or statutory body to the relevant
Minister/s

ARRs – section 7 P. 3

Accessibility  Table of contents

 Glossary 

ARRs – section 9.1 P. 4

P. 58

 Public availability ARRs – section 9.2 P. 2

 Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy 

ARRs – section 9.3 

P.2

 Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 

ARRs – section 9.4 

P. 2

 Information Licensing QGEA – Information 
Licensing 

ARRs – section 9.5 

N/A 

General 
information 

 Introductory Information ARRs – section 10.1 P. 5-7

 Agency role and main functions ARRs – section 10.2 P.8, 20-21

 Machinery of Government changes ARRs – section 10.2, 31 and 
32 

(if applicable) 

 Operating environment ARRs – section 10.3 P. 8-12, 20-21

Non-financial 
performance 

 Government’s objectives for the community ARRs – section 11.1 P. 2 & 10

 Other whole-of-government plans / specific
initiatives

ARRs – section 11.2 N/A 

 Agency objectives and performance indicators ARRs – section 11.3 P. 8 - 15

 Agency service areas and service standards ARRs – section 11.4 N/A 

Financial 
performance 

 Summary of financial performance ARRs – section 12.1 P. 17 - 19

Governance – 
management and 
structure 

 Organisational structure ARRs – section 13.1 P. 20,21 & 23

 Executive management ARRs – section 13.2 P. 24 - 25

 Government bodies (statutory bodies and other
entities)

ARRs – section 13.3 P. 20 - 21

 Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 
1994 

ARRs – section 13.4 

N/A 

 Queensland public service values ARRs – section 13.5 N/A 

Governance – 
risk management 
and 
accountability 

 Risk management ARRs – section 14.1 P.21 - 22 & 25-26

 Audit committee ARRs – section 14.2 P. 25 - 26

 Internal audit ARRs – section 14.3 P. 26
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement 
Annual report 

reference 

 External scrutiny ARRs – section 14.4 P. 26

 Information systems and recordkeeping ARRs – section 14.5 P. 26 - 27

Governance – 
human 
resources 

 Strategic workforce planning and performance ARRs – section 15.1 P. 16

 Early retirement, redundancy and retrenchment Directive No.04/18 Early 
Retirement, Redundancy 
and Retrenchment 

ARRs – section 15.2 

P. 17

Open Data  Statement advising publication of information ARRs – section 16 P.28

 Consultancies ARRs – section 33.1 https://data.qld.gov.au

 Overseas travel ARRs – section 33.2 https://data.qld.gov.au

 Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs – section 33.3 https://data.qld.gov.au

Financial 
statements 

 Certification of financial statements FAA – section 62 

FPMS – sections 38, 39 and 
46 

ARRs – section 17.1 

P.29 - 54

 Independent Auditor’s Report FAA – section 62 

FPMS – section 46 

ARRs – section 17.2 

P. 55 - 57

FAA  Financial Accountability Act 2009  

FPMS  Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 

ARRs Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies 
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